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HAM PSH REGROUP
Fellow Shareholders

As you know was appointed by the Board of Directors to take on the role as Hampshires CEO
in January of this year Prior to accepting this position was involved with the Company as

board member following Hampshires purchase of Rio Garment S.A the Honduran-based

manufacturing business of which was large shareholder when it was sold to the Company in

August 2011

During my time as board member the Company took number of preliminary steps to

transition Hampshire Group from sweater business to year-round provider of sportswear

products In particular the Company

Phased out the legacy licenses of two declining businesses

Focused its resources towards the Dockers and Panama Jack licenses

Improved capacity within the Rio Garment factory

Expanded its relationship with Dockers by licensing the right to design and sell

products in the knit and woven tops categories

Though important strides were made in 2012 there is still much to be done in the coming year
There is no doubt that the business is still in the transition phase and with the support of my
colleagues we arc working to establish profitable and sustainable platform to further grow the

business with the end goal of achieving replenishment style business model characterized by
consistent and reliable sales and delivery cycle

There are several opportunities and new initiatives underway to expand our product lines and

partner with new customers Achieving further capacity and profitability from Rio Garment and

increasing our portfolio of brands whether through licensing or acquisition opportunities

continue to be two top priorities

While we work to implement these our key customer relationships remain strong and we are

enthusiastic about the additional value and growth that can be achieved from these relationships

In addition to serving as Hampshires CEO am also large shareholder so my interests are

aligned with yours believe there is considerable potential to significantly grow the value of our

Company and look forward to reporting on our continued progress Thank you for your ongoing

patience and support

Sincerely

Paul Buxbaum
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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

From time to time we make oral and written statements that may constitute forward looking statements rather than

historical facts as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 or by the Securities and Exchange

Commission the SEC in its rules regulations and releases including Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 as

amended the Securities Act and Section 1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act
We desire to take advantage of the safe harbor provisions in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for

forward looking statements made from time to time including but not limited to the forward looking statements made in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K the Annual Report as well as those made in other filings with the SEC

Forward looking statements can be identified by our use of forward looking terminology such as may will expect

anticipate estimate believe continue forecast foresee or other similar words Such forward looking statements

are based on our managements current plans and expectations and are subject to risks uncertainties and changes in plans that

could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward looking statements Important factors that

could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in our forward looking statements include but are not

limited to those described under Risk Factors set forth in Item 1A of this Annual Report

We expressly disclaim any obligation to release publicly any updates or any changes in our expectations or any changes in

events conditions or circumstances on which any forward-looking statement is based

As used herein except as otherwise indicated by the context the terms Hampshire Company we and us are used to

refer to Hampshire Group Limited and our wholly-owned subsidiaries

11



FART

Item Business

Company Overview

General

Hampshire Group Limited is provider of fashion apparel across broad range of product categories channels of

distribution and price points As holding company we operate through our wholly-owned subsidiaries Hampshire Brands
Inc Rio Garment S.A and scott james LLC We were established in 1976 and are incorporated in the state of Delaware

Hampshire Brands designs and markets mens sportswear to department stores chain stores and mass market retailers under

licensed brands our own proprietary brands and the private labels of our customers Among others we offer full
tops

assortment under the Dockers brand and t-shirt and board short assortment under the Panama Jack brand both of which

are licensed as well as private label t-shirt and sweater offerings to retailers under their private labels

The scott james brand is designer apparel collection for men which includes full sportswear offering It is sold

primarily through upscale department and specialty stores scott james retail shops and online at

www.scottjamesonline.com

Rio Garment S.A Rio acquired August 25 2011 is Honduras-based apparel manufacturer designing sourcing and

manufacturing hut tops for men women and children which are sold to retailers and distributors primarily in the United

States Rios manufacturing platform primarily supports the vertical specialty store channel Our manufacturing operations

begin with the purchase of fabric and other raw materials from third party suppliers The fabrics are ultimately sewn into

finished garments at our textile facility or at the facilities of third party contractors located in Honduras Rio also purchases

yarn and outsources fabric production to third parties where upon completion the fabric returns to the Rio facility for

production Our garments may also be embellished and prepared for retail with any combination of services including

ticketing hang tags and hangers

Recent Initiatives

The economic environment over the past several years has been challenging and has been characterized by among other

things restrained consumer spending weak credit market conditions and inflationary pressures on our cost of goods In an
effort to preserve gross margin dollars in the face of rising costs of goods and stagnant out the door prices during the past
two years we have taken significant steps to reposition our Company for growth and profitability including

Disposition of the womens businesses In May 2011 we announced significant shift in our growth strategy with the

disposition of our underperforming womens businesses The disposition of these businesses allowed us to focus on

leveraging our operating platform in the mens business and actively pursue other strategic opportunities On May
2011 in connection with this new strategic direction we sold our womens businesses Hampshire Designers and

Item-Eyes in two separate transactions for total purchase price of $12.3 million plus inventory before consideration

of certain transaction costs and assets and liabilities that were not sold

Integration of Rio On August 25 2011 we reached significant milestone with the acquisition of Rio Rio has

provided us an opportunity to grow our core business into the fast-growing vertical specialty store channel and has

allowed us to leverage our existing operating platforms to expand Rios business into the department and chain store

channels Rio has the ability to produce for variety of apparel categories including performance and fashion Since

completing the acquisition we have augmented Rios infrastructure in place to support growth We are realizing the

benefits of our strategy for Rio as we continue to develop more robust product offering grow its capacity within its

current physical footprint and improve the efficiency of its operations

Added Dockers and Panama Jack licenses while phasing out legacy licenses with declining sales We entered into

multi-year licensing agreement with Dockers for its mens good category tops in the United States As part of
this agreement we oversee the design production sales and distribution of the line to certain chain and department
stores including Kohls Department Stores Inc J.C Penney Company Inc and Sears Holding Corporation The

woven and knit line includes button down shirts poios fleece tops and t-shirts We believe that these additional

categories complement and strengthen the marketability of our Dockers sweater offering and taken together help to

ensure we have compelling international brand to offer to retailers We also entered into licensing agreement with

Panama Jack to provide new line of lifestyle apparel for men including full tops and board short assortment The



Dockers and Panama Jack licenses are well-recognized growing brands that have allowed us to phase out legacy

licenses with declining sales

Broadening and diversifying our customer base We remain focused on exploring opportunities to grow our sales and

expand our retail relationships We continued through 2012 to build brand recognition and market presence as

demonstrated by new customer relationship with Bloomingdales Further we have begun new customer

relationships with Wal-Mart and Kmart through our Panama Jack business

Restructuring and cost savings plan In 2012 we implemented cost savings plan primarily through workforce

reduction that has allowed us to operate our business more efficiently and reduce costs

Reorganization plan On January 15 2013 Heath Golden resigned as chief executive officer of the Company At the

time of the resignation the Board of Directors of the Company the Board appointed Paul Buxbaum to serve as the

Companys new chief executive officer Additionally on January 28 2013 the Company entered into an agreement

with Buxbaum Group to provide certain restructuring and advisory consulting services Pursuant to the agreement

Buxbaum Group is tasked with providing specific recommendations to the Board concerning the organization

operations
and expenses to better support the Companys business model and sales levels Additionally under the

agreement Buxbaum Group is responsible for the implementation of such recommendations to the extent adopted by

the Board

Our Products

We have continued to enhance and diversify our product lines in 2012 Our expanded product line and capabilities through

the acquisition of Rio and development of scott james permit us to supply many more departments of our existing

customers and helps us attract new customers

The emphasis with every garment we offer is compelling product that features high quality and good value The recent

diversification and expansion of our product offerings allows us to participate in range of retail price points from main

floor traditional styles to fashion forward designer styles

Our Strengths

We believe that we occupy strong competitive position in consolidating industry We plan to further solidify our position

through

Business Focus We continually review our portfolio of labels business lines and divisions to evaluate whether they meet

profitability and performance requirements and are in line with our business focus During 2012 we expanded the product

categories under our Dockers license and entered into Panama Jack license In 2011 we discontinued and sold the

womens businesses and acquired Rio

Solid Infrastructure We are recognized by leading retailers for our compelling product design high quality
value

proposition sourcing expertise and commitment to customer service Our international sourcing abilities permit us to deliver

trend right quality product to each of the tiers of distribution we supply which are primarily located within the United States

The quality of our garments
is assured in variety of ways Each garment is manufactured using fine quality yarns and

undergoes rigorous quality assurance checks We utilize our own personnel as well as factory personnel independent

inspection agencies and independent test labs to ensure that our products meet the high quality standards required for our

brands

Extensive and Diverse Retail Relationships Our relationships with major retailers range from national and regional

department stores such as Macys Inc and Belk Inc to upscale department stores such as Bloomingdales to national chain

stores such as J.C Penney Company Inc and Kohls Department Stores Inc to vertical specialty stores such as

Aeropostale Inc to off-price retailers such as TJ Maxx division of The TJX Companies Inc and Ross Stores Inc These

relationships enable our products to reach large consumer base both in number and in geographical area

Our Stratev

Hampshires strategies for the future include leveraging our

Experienced Design and Sourcing Capabilities We have and continue to invest in high quality design talent and resources

Our investments are aimed at further strengthening our design and sourcing efficiencies to ensure our brands fulfill the

demand for high quality value and trend right product



Strong Competitive Position As our retail customers seek to differentiate their assortments from competitors they are

increasingly turning to select designer and exclusive labels We have demonstrated our value to retailers by offering such

well known licensed brands as Dockers and Panama Jack lines In addition we are continuing to develop our owned scott

james brand Also Rio provides dependable and optimal pricing for the vertical specialty store customers As we continue
to integrate Rio into our business we believe that we can benefit from considerable cross-selling opportunities and that our

acquisition of Rio positions us well with respect to the strong industry trend toward migrating production to the western

hemisphere

Constant Improvement of our Infrastructure As efficient systems and technologies are critical to meeting our retail

customers needs we are constantly-re-evaluating our infrastructure to obtain additional synergies and efficiencies During
2012 we were able to successfullyintegrate Rio onto certain reporting and operating platforms Also the Company is in the

process of implementing state-of-the-art production and planning system that will further enhance and improve Rios
operating capabilities

Growth Opportunities in Existing and New Channels We are focused both on growing our sales to retailers in the moderate

department and chain store channel as well as actively exploring new sales channels including international vertical

specialty stores and direct-to-consumer Our efforts with scottjames and Rio have been critical to achieving growth in this

respect

Organization

We have long history of supplying mens branded and private label apparel to the department stores and national chains

throughout the United States We utilize our own sales force and contract third party salespersons to sell our products With

our established international sourcing relationships we have the ability to respond quickly to changing fashion trends Our

acquisition of Rio has allowed us to continue to build upon our product diversification sales force and agility within the

apparel industry

Customers

We have long term relationships with many of our customers Hampshire Brands sells products principally into the moderate

price sector of most major department and chain stores in the United States scottjames sells products primarily to upscale

specialty stores Rio sells primarily to the vertical specialty store channel Sales to our three largest customers in 2012
Aeropostale Kohls Department Stores Inc and J.C Penney Company Inc represented 52% 14% and 12% respectively
of total annual sales These same three customers represented 30% 16% and 28% respectively of total sales during 2011
The growth in sales from Aeropostale from 2011 to 2012 was primarily due to full

year of sales in 2012 as compared to

2011 as Rio was acquired on August 25 2011 and represents sales from that date forward For each of the last two years
more than 99% of our sales from continuing operations were to customers located in the United States

Suppliers

Hampshire Brands and scottjames primarily use foreign suppliers for their raw materials and product manufacturing
During 2012 the majority of our products were produced by independent manufacturers located in Southeast Asia Keynote
Services Limited our subsidiary based in China assists with our sourcing needs and provides quality control Rio primarily
purchases raw materials including yarn and fabric from suppliers in the United States Fabric is also purchased locally in

Honduras Purchased fabric is used in the
manufacturing process at our facility located in Honduras We outsource the fabric

production to third party manufacturers

Competition

The apparel market remains highly competitive Competition is primarily based on design price quality and service While
we face competition from domestic manufacturers and distributors our primary competition comes from private label

programs of the internal sourcing organizations of many of our customers and factories located in Southeast Asia

Our ability to compete is enhanced by our in-house design capabilities and our international sourcing relationships Our
launches of both Dockers and Panama Jack in additional categories and of scott james as well as the acquisition of Rio
are the most recent examples of our ongoing efforts to deploy our fmancial resources in manner that helps develop

competitive advantage by broadening our apparel offerings and product lines to reach multiple tiers of distribution

Seasonality

In the past our business was highly seasonal as result of our product mix including high concentration of sweaters

Although not as significant as in prior years our business continues to maintain fairly high degree of seasonality with



approximately 65% of our sales during 2012 occurring in the third and fourth quarters As result of such seasonality

inventory begins to rise in the second quarter and typically peaks during the third quarter before descending to its cyclical

low in the fourth quarter Trade receivable balances rise commensurately with sales Cash balances follow this cycle as

inventory is purchased product is sold and trade receivables are collected Funding inventory and pending trade receivable

collections deplete cash balances and may require draws from our revolving credit facility in the third or fourth quarters Our

income or loss from continuing operations has generally
been correlated with revenue as large percentage of our profits

have historically been generated in the third and fourth fiscal quarters

Seasonality in 2012 declined largely as result of Rios more even distribution of sales throughout the year as compared to

our other subsidiaries In 2013 and beyond we expect this seasonality to decline further as result of the Dockers and

Panama Jack licenses which we believe will increase our sales during the spring season

Manufacturing

Rios manufacturing platform primarily supports the vertical specialty store channel Our manufacturing operations begin

with the purchase of fabric and other raw materials from third party suppliers The fabrics are ultimately sewn into fmished

garments at our textile facility or at third party contractors located in Honduras Rio also purchases yam and outsources fabric

production to third parties where upon completion the fabric returns to the Rio facility for production Our garments may

also be embellished and prepared for retail with any combination of services including ticketing hang tags and hangers

For description of risks associated with our operations
located outside the United States see Item 1A Risk Factors

Effects of Changing Prices

We are subject to increased prices for the products we source We have historically managed our gross margin by achieving

sourcing efficiencies controlling costs in other parts of our operation and when appropriate passing along portion of our

cost increases to our customers through higher selling prices We confront inflationary pressures
in transportation costs labor

and materials

Backlog

Our sales order backlog as of March 2013 was approximately $71.5 million compared to approximately $67.7 million as of

March 2012 The sales order backlog as of March 2012 included $20.4 million of orders related to license agreements

that expired in 2012 The timing of the placement of seasonal orders by customers affects the backlog accordingly

comparison of backlog from year to year is not necessarily indicative of trend in sales for the year The backlog as of March

2013 is expected to be filled during 2013

Trademarks and Licenses

We consider our owned trademarks to have significant
value in the marketing of our products In addition we have entered

into licensing agreements to manufacture and market apparel under certain labels for which we pay royalties based on the

volume of sales The licensing agreements are generally
for three year terms We do not own any patents

Electronic Information Systems

In order to schedule production fill customer orders transmit shipment data to our customers distribution centers and

invoice electronically we have developed number of integrated electronic information systems applications Approximately

40% of our customer orders for 2012 were received electronically In some instances our customers computer systems

generate these orders based on sales and inventory levels We electronically send advance shipment notices and invoices to

our customers which result in the timely update of their inventory levels

Credit and Collection

We manage our credit and collection functions by approving and monitoring our customers credit limits Credit limits are

determined by past payment history and financial information obtained from credit agencies and other sources The majority

of high risk accounts are factored without recourse if possible with financial institutions to reduce our credit risk exposure

We believe that our review procedures and our credit and collection staff have contributed significantly toward minimizing

our losses from bad debt

Governmental Regulation and Trade Agreements

The apparel industry and our business are subject to wide variety of international trade agreements as well as federal state

and local regulations We believe we arc in compliance in all material respects with these agreements and regulations

International trade agreements in particular can have significant impact on the apparel industry and consequently on our

business These agreements generally provide for tariffs which impose duty charge on the product being imported and



quotas which limit the amount of product that may be imported from specific country both of which increase the cost of

importing product

Primary among the trade agreements existing between the United States and certain foreign countries is the World Trade

Organization WTO which is the governing body for international trade among the 151 originating member countries

including the United States Effective January 2005 all such quota restrictions involving trade with WTO member
countries were terminated In addition to the WTO apparel imports into the United States are affected by other trade

agreements and legislation including the Dominican Republic Central American Free Trade Agreement and the North

American Free Trade Agreement which has eliminated all apparel tariffs and quotas between the member countries and

legislation granting similar trade benefits to 23 Caribbean countries Further Congress passed the African Growth and

Opportunity Act in 2000 which gave 38 countries in sub-Saharan Africa similar trade privileges on apparel and certain other

products exported to the United States

Rio is authorized to operate under the Honduran Free Trade Zone Regime FTZ Therefore Rio qualifies for exemption
from Honduran customs duties charges and surcharges internal consumption production sales tax and other excise taxes on

imported and exported goods Rio is also exempt from municipal taxes asset taxes and income taxes provided that Rio does

not benefit from income tax exemption granted in another country In order to maintain the FTZ exemption Rio must export
at least 95% of its annual production Rio currently exports 99% of its production

Compliance with Environmental Laws
We believe that we are in compliance with applicable environmental laws and that such compliance will not have major
adverse financial impact on us We further believe that there are no environmental matters that are likely to have significant

fmancial impact on us There can be no assurance however that future changes in federal state or local regulations

interpretations of existing regulations or the discovery of currently unknown problems or conditions will not require

substantial additional expenditures Similarly while we are not currently aware of any violations the extent of our liability if

any for past failures to comply with laws regulations and permits applicable to our operations cannot be determined and

could have material adverse effect on our operations financial condition or liquidity

Employees

As of March 2013 we employed approximately 979 full-time employees in Honduras 76 full-time employees in the

United States and 18 full-time employees in China We believe our relationship with our employees is good We have

invested significant time and resources in ensuring that the working conditions in our Honduras facility meet or exceed the

standards imposed by the relevant governing laws In addition we have proactive programs to promote workplace safety

personal health and employee wellness

Available Information

Our periodic and current reports including amendments to such reports as filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or

15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended are available free of charge on our website www.hamp.com as

soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC Information contained

on our website is not and should not be deemed part of this Annual Report or part of any other report or filing with the

SEC



Item 1A Risk Factors

In addition to the risks that are described below there may be risks that we do not yet know of or that we currently think are

immaterial that may also impair our business If any of the events or circumstances described as risks below or elsewhere in

this report actually occur our business results of operations or financial condition could be materially and adversely affected

The following risks as well as other information contained herein including our consolidated financial statements and notes

thereto should be carefully considered in evaluating our business and any investment in our common stock

The apparel industry is heavily influenced by general economic cycles that affect consumer spending prolonged period of

depressed consumer spending would have material adverse effect on us

The apparel industry has historically been subject to cyclical variations recessions in the general economy and uncertainties

regarding future economic prospects
that affect consumer spending habits which could negatively impact our business The

success of our operations depends on number of factors impacting discretionary consumer spending including general

economic conditions consumer confidence wages and unemployment housing prices consumer debt interest rates fuel and

energy costs taxation and political conditions downturn in the economy may affect consumer purchases of our products

and adversely impact our growth and profitability

We use foren suppliers for our raw materials and the manufacture of products for our men division and our operations

include manufacturing facility based in Honduras which poses risks to our business operations

During 2012 the majority of our production took place in Honduras and significant portion of our products were also

produced by independent manufacturers located outside the United States Although no single supplier is critical to our

production needs any of the following could adversely affect the production and delivery of our products and as result

have an adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

political or labor instability in countries where contractors and suppliers are located

political or military conflict involving the United States

heightened terrorism security concerns which could subject imported goods to additional more frequent or more

thorough inspections leading to delays in deliveries or impoundment of goods for extended periods

significant decrease in availability or increase in cost of labor or raw materials particularly in petroleum based

synthetic fabrics

impact of the global economic downturn on third party factories and their viability

disease epidemics and health related concerns which could result in closed factories reduced workforces and scrutiny or

embargo of goods produced in infected areas

imposition of regulations quotas or duties relating to imports which among other things could limit our ability to

produce products in cost effective countries that have the labor force and expertise required

any action that may change the foreign currency exchange rate against the dollar or permit the exchange rate to float and

significant fluctuation of the value of the dollar as compared to other foreign currencies

The occurrence of any some or all of these events could have material adverse impact on our business operating results

and financial condition There can be no assurance that if disruption occurred we could replace our manufacturing capacity

and/or find other manufacturing resources

There may not be an established public trading market for the Companys common stock

There is currently no established public trading market for our common stock Our common stock is currently quoted on the

OTC Markets formerly known as Pink Sheets under the symbol HAMP The OTC Markets is centralized quotation

service that collects and publishes market maker quotes for over-the-counter securities in real time Over-the-counter market

quotations like those on the OTC Markets reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up mark-down or commission and

may not necessarily represent actual transactions Currently we are not actively seeking to become listed on the Nasdaq

Global Market or any other exchange There can be no assurance that our common stock will again be listed on national

exchange or that trading market for our common stock will be established



We rely on our key customers and signifIcant decrease in business from or the loss of any one of these ke customers

would substantially reduce our revenues and adversely affect our business

Aeropostale Kohls Department Stores Inc and J.C Penney Company Inc account for significant portion of our revenues
We do not have long term agreements with any of our customers and purchases generally occur on an order by order basis

decision by any of our major customers whether motivated by marketing strategy competitive conditions financial

difficulties or otherwise to decrease significantly the amount of merchandise purchased from us or to change their manner of

doing business with us could substantially reduce our revenues and have material adverse effect on our profitability

The retail industry has in the past several years experienced great deal of consolidation and other ownership changes and
we expect such changes to be ongoing In the future retailers may further consolidate undergo restructurings or

reorganizations realign their affiliations or re-position their stores target markets Any of these types of actions could

decrease the number of stores that
carry our products or increase the ownership concentration withth the retail industry These

changes could decrease our opportunities in the market increase our reliance on smaller number of customers and decrease

our negotiating strength with them

Our business has been and could continue to be adversely affected by financial instability experienced by our customers

During the past several years various retailers have experienced significant fmancial difficulties which have resulted in

bankruptcies liquidations and store closings Over the last few years several of our customers including Goodys Mervyns
Gottschalks and Boscovs either reorganized or liquidated We sell our product primarily to national and regional department

stores and vertical specialty stores in the United States on credit and evaluate each customers financial condition on

regular basis in order to determine the credit risk we take in selling goods to them The fmancial difficulties of customer
could cause us to curtail business with that customer and we may be unable to shift sales to another customer at comparable
margins We may also assume more credit risk relating to receivables of customer experiencing financial instability Should
these circumstances arise with

respect to our customers our inability to shift sales or to collect on our trade accounts

receivable from any one of our customers could substantially reduce our revenues and have material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations

Chargebacks and margin support payments may have material adverse effect on our business

Consistent with industry practice we may allow customers to deduct agreed upon amounts from the purchase price for sales

allowances co-op advertising new store opening discounts and other marketing development funds which in the opinion of

management promotes brand awareness In addition margin support payments may be required due to lower than anticipated
sell through rates which may be caused by uncontrollable factors such as general economic conditions changing fashion

trends and weather conditions as well as controllable factors such as wholesale prices design merchandising and the quality
of our goods These deductions have dilutive effect on our business and results of operations since they reduce overall

gross
profit margins on sales If our efforts to reduce our margin support are unsuccessful we will likely continue to experience
significant levels of chargebacks and margin support payments which may further reduce our profitability resulting in

material adverse effect on our business

We are dependent upon the revenues generated by our licensing alliances and the loss or inability to renew certain licenses

could reduce our revenue and consequently reduce our net income

We license brands from third parties for specific products The term of each of our licenses is generally three years and we
typically have the opportunity to renew or extend the licenses which are sometimes conditioned upon our meeting certain

sales targets We may not be able to renew or extend these licenses on favorable terms if at all If we are unable to renew or
extend any one of these licenses we could experience decrease in net sales

We may not be able to anticipate consumer preferences and fashion trends which could negatively affect acceptance of our

products by retailers and consumers and result in significant decrease in net sales

Our failure to anticipate identif and respond effectively to changing consumer demands and fashion trends could adversely
affect acceptance of our products by retailers and consumers and may result in significant decrease in net sales or leave us
with substantial amount of unsold inventory Our products must appeal to broad range of consumers whose preferences
cannot be predicted with certainty and are subject to rapid change We may not be able to continue to develop appealing

styles or successfully meet constantly changing consumer demands in the future In addition any new products or brands that

we introduce may not be received successfully by retailers and consumers If our products are not received successfully by
retailers and consumers and we are left with substantial amount of unsold inventory we may be forced to rely on
markdowns or promotional sales to dispose of excess inventory If this occurs our business fmancial condition and results of

operations could be materially adversely affected



If our manufacturers fail to use acceptable ethical business practices our business could be adversely affected

We require our manufacturers to operate in compliance with applicable laws rules and regulations regarding working

conditions employment practices and environmental compliance However we do not control the labor and other business

practices of the independent manufacturers of our products If one of our manufacturers violates labor or other laws or

implements labor or other business practices that are generally regarded as unethical in the United States the shipment of

products to us could be interrupted and our reputation could be damaged Any of these events could have material adverse

effect on our results of operations

Our business could be harmed if we do not deliver quality products in timely manner

Our sourcing logistics and technology functions operate within substantial production and delivery requirements
and subject

us to the risks associated with unaffiliated manufacturers transportation and other factors If we do not comply with customer

product requirements or meet their delivery requirements our customers could seek reduced purchase prices require

significant margin support reduce the amount of business they do with us or cease to do business with us all of which would

adversely affect our business

If we encounter problems with our distribution system our ability to deliver our products to the market would be adversely

affected

We rely on third party distribution facilities to warehouse and to ship product to our customers Due to the fact that

substantially all of our product is distributed from relatively small number of locations our operations
could be interrupted

by earthquakes floods fires or other natural disasters near our distribution centers We maintain business interruption

insurance but it may not adequately protect us from the loss of customers In addition our distribution capacity is dependent

on the timely performance of services by third parties including transportation of product to and from distribution facilities

If we encounter problems with our distribution system our inability to meet customer expectations on managing inventory

complete sales and achieve objectives for operating efficiencies could have material adverse effect on our business

Labor disruptions at ports or our suppliers facilities manufacturers facilities or distribution facilities may adversely affect

our business

Our business depends on our ability to source and distribute product in timely manner As result we rely on the free flow

of goods on consistent basis from our suppliers and manufacturers Labor disputes at various ports or at our suppliers

manufacturers or our distribution facilities create significant risks for our business particularly if these disputes result in

work slowdowns lockouts strikes or other disruptions during our peak importing or manufacturing seasons An interruption

in the flow of goods could have material adverse effect on our business potentially resulting in cancelled orders by

customers unanticipated inventory accumulation or shortages and reduced net sales and net income

We rely significantly on information technology and any failure inadequacy interruption or security lapse of that technology

could adversely qffect our ability to effectively operate our business

Our ability to manage and maintain our inventory and internal reports and to ship products to customers and invoice them on

timely basis depends significantly on our internally developed enterprise resource planning system as approximately 40%

of our orders are received electronically The failure of this system to operate effectively or to integrate with other systems or

breach in security of this system could cause delays in product fulfillment and reduced efficiency of our operations and it

could require significant capital investments to remedy any such failure problem or breach

We operate in highly competitive and fragmented industry and our failure to compete successfully could result in loss of

one or more significant customers

The apparel industry is highly competitive and fragmented Our competitors include numerous apparel designers

manufacturers retailers importers and licensors many of which have greater financial and marketing resources than we

possess
We believe that the principal competitive factors in the apparel industry are

brand name and brand identity

timeliness reliability and quality of product and services provided

market share and visibility

price and

the ability to anticipate customer and consumer demands

The level of competition and the nature of our competitors vary by product segment with low margin manufacturers being

our main competitors in the less expensive segment of the market and with domestic and foreign designers and licensors

competing with us in the more upscale segment of the market Increasingly we experience competition from our customers

in-house private labels If we do not maintain our brand names and identities and continue to provide high quality and



reliable services on timely basis at competitive prices our ability to compete in our industry will be adversely affected If

we are unable to compete successfully we could lose one or more of our significant customers which could have material

adverse effect on our sales and fmancial performance

We may face challenges in the management of the sales and pro fItabilitv of any acquisitions that we may make as well as in

integrating the acquired businesses any of which may negatively impact our business

As part of our growth strategy we have acquired and licensed and in the future may acquire or license new brands and

product categories We may also make strategic acquisitions in addition to Rio Acquisitions have inherent risks including
the risk that the projected sales and net income from the acquisition may not be generated the risk that the integration of the

acquired business is more costly and takes longer than anticipated the risk of diversion of the attention and resources of

management risks associated with additional customer concentration and related credit risk risks of retaining key personnel
and risks associated with unanticipated events and unknown legal liabilities despite the due diligence efforts that we
undertake Any of these risks could have material adverse effect on our business

We may be subject to the impairment of acquired intangible assets

When we acquire business portion of the purchase price of the acquisition may be allocated to goodwill and other
identifiable intangible assets At December 31 2012 and 2011 our goodwill and intangible assets were approximately $17.2

million and $18.6 million respectively We conduct an annual review and more frequent reviews if events or circumstances

dictate to determine whether goodwill is impaired We also determine whether impairment indicators are present related to

our identifiable intangible assets If we determine that goodwill or other intangible assets are impaired we would be required
to write down the value of these assets

The ultimate resolution of income and other possible tax liabilities may require us to incur expense beyond amounts reserved

on our balance sheet or make cash payments beyond those that we anticipated

The ultimate resolution of income and other possible tax liabilities may require us to incur expense beyond amounts reserved

on our balance sheet or make cash payments beyond those that we anticipated Our historic income and other tax positions

may be challenged by the appropriate taxing authorities We believe that we have provided adequate reserves for these tax

positions for all periods open under the applicable statutes of limitations but challenge by taxing authority could prove
costly to defend as well as to resolve If the actual liability for taxes exceeds our reserves earnings could be materially
adversely affected and we may be required to make cash payments beyond what we anticipated

Utilization of our net operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards may be subject to substantial annual limitations due to

the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code the Code Section 382 Such annual limitations

could result in the expiration of the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards before their utilization The events that

may cause ownership changes include but are not limited to cumulative stock ownership change of greater than 50% over
three year period Calculating whether an ownership change has occurred is subject to uncertainty both because of the

complexity of Section 382 of the Code and because of limitations on publicly-traded companys knowledge as to the

ownership of and transactions in its securities Therefore the calculation of the amount of our net operating loss

carryforwards may be changed as result of challenge by governmental authority or our learning of new information

about the ownership of and transactions in our securities Our ability to fully utilize our net operating losses could be limited
if there are future ownership changes that together with certain ownership changes in our common stock that have occurred

during any prior three year period including as of the date hereof any shares issued in connection with the Rio transaction
result in change of control for the

purposes
of Section 382

Rio is authorized to operate under the Honduran Free Trade Zone Regime FTZ Therefore Rio qualifies for exemption
from Honduran customs duties charges and surcharges internal consumption production sales tax and other excise taxes on
imported and exported goods Rio is also exempt from

municipal taxes asset taxes and income taxes provided that Rio does

not benefit from income tax exemption granted in another country In order to maintain the FTZ exemption Rio must export
at least 95% of its annual production Rio currently exports 99% of its production Although the FTZ is indefinite by nature

subsequent repeal or modification of the FTZ or any failure to qualify for the aforementioned exemptions could materially

adversely affect our results of operations

Significant changes to international trade regulations could adversely affect our results of operations

large portion of our products are manufactured in Honduras We therefore benefit from the Dominican Republic Central

America Free Trade Agreement DR-CAFTA Our claims for duty free or reduced duty treatment under DR-CAFTA and
other available programs are largely conditioned on our ability to produce or obtain accurate records some of which are

provided to us by third parties about production processes and sources of raw materials Subsequent repeal or modification

of DR-CAFTA or the inadequacy or unavailability of supporting records could materially adversely affect our results of



operations In addition our products are subject to foreign competition which in the past has been faced with significant U.S

government import restrictions The extent of import protection afforded to domestic apparel producers has been and is

likely to remain subject to political considerations The elimination of import protections
for domestic apparel producers

could significantly
increase global competition which could adversely affect our business In addition any failure to comply

with international trade regulations could cause us to become subject to investigation resulting in significant penalties or

claims or an inability to conduct our business adversely affecting our results of operations

We are dependent on certain key personnel the loss of whom could negatively impact our ability to manage our business

and thereby adversely affect our business

Our future success depends to significant extent on retaining the services of key executive officers other key members of

management and directors The loss of the services of any one of these individuals or any other key member of management

could have material adverse effect on our business

The stockholders rights plan adopted by the Board of Directors in 2008 may inhibit takeovers and may adversely affect the

market price of our common stock

In 2008 our Board of Directors Board approved the creation of our Series Preferred Stock and adopted stockholders

rights plan pursuant to which it declared dividend of one Series Preferred Stock purchase right for each share of our

common stock held by stockholders of record The preferred share purchase rights will also attach to any additional shares of

common stock issued Initially these rights will not be exercisable and will trade with the shares of our common stock

Under the rights plan these rights will generally
be exercisable only if

person or group acquires or commences tender or

exchange offer for 15% or more of our common stock If the rights become exercisable each right will permit its holder to

purchase one one-thousandth of share of Series Preferred Stock for the exercise price of $33.00 per right The rights plan

also contains customary flip-in and flip-over provisions such that if person or group acquires beneficial ownership of

fifteen percent or more of our common stock each right will permit its holder other than the acquiring person or group to

purchase shares of our common stock for price equal to the quotient obtained by dividing $33.00 per right by one-half the

then current market price of our common stock In addition if after person acquires such ownership we are later acquired

in merger or similar transaction each right will permit its holder other than the acquiring person or group to purchase

shares of the acquiring corporations stock for price equal to the quotient obtained by dividing $33.00 per right by one-half

of the then current market price of the acquiring companys common stock based on the market price of the acquiring

corporations stock prior to such merger

The stockholders rights plan and the associated Series Preferred Stock purchase rights may discourage hostile takeover

and prevent our stockholders from receiving premium over the prevailing market price for the shares of our common stock

Global economic political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business increase our costs and negatively

affect our stock price

Global credit and financial markets have experienced extreme disruptions in recent years including severely diminished

liquidity and credit availability declines in consumer confidence declines in economic growth increases in unemployment

rates and uncertainty about economic stability While the decline in consumer spending has recently moderated these

economic conditions could still lead to continued declines in consumer spending and may have resulted in resetting of

consumer spending habits that makes it unlikely that such spending will return to prior levels for the foreseeable future which

in turn may lead to further decreases in our net sales or material adverse effect on our operating results financial position

and cash flows Economic conditions have also led to highly promotional environment and strong discounting pressure

from our customers which have had negative effect on our revenues and profitability This promotional environment may

continue even after economic growth returns as we expect that consumer spending trends are likely to remain below

historical levels for the foreseeable future

The price of purchased yarn and other raw materials used by us or our suppliers is prone to signifIcant fluctuations and

volatility

Fluctuations in the price availability and quality of the fabrics or other raw materials used to manufacture our products could

have material adverse effect on our cost of goods sold or our ability to meet our customers demands The prices for fabrics

depend largely on the market prices for the raw materials used to produce them The price and availability of such raw

materials may fluctuate significantly depending on many factors At times in the past we have experienced significant

upward pressure on each of the foregoing cost inputs which resulted in pressure on our gross margin Whenever possible we

pass along these cost increases to our customers through higher selling prices Should our customers not accept such

increases or should they accept them in the first instance but fail to achieve higher average unit retails thereby increasing

their need for margin support from us our profitability may be materially adversely affected
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The price of energy and fuel costs are prone to significant fluctuations and volatility which could adversely afect our results

of operations

Our manufacturing operations and those of our suppliers require high inputs of energy and therefore changes in energy

prices directly impact our gross profits In addition we incur significant shipping and freight costs to transport goods from

our offshore facility and suppliers offshore facilities to the United States The cost of energy and fuel fluctuate due to

number of factors outside our control including government policy and regulation and weather conditions We continue to

focus on manufacturing methods that will reduce the amount of energy used in the production of our products to mitigate

risks of fluctuations in the cost of energy However significant increases in
energy and fuel prices may make us less

competitive as compared to others in the industry which may have material adverse effect on our results of operations

We may be restricted in our ability to borrow under our revolving credit facility

Significant operating losses or significant uses of cash in our operations could cause us to default on our asset-based

revolving credit facility Our ability to borrow under the credit facility depends on our accounts receivable and inventory

levels significant deterioration in our accounts receivable or inventory levels could restrict our ability to borrow funds In

addition the credit facility includes customary conditions to funding representations and warranties covenants and events of

default The covenants include among other things limitations on asset sales consolidations mergers liens indebtedness

loans investments guaranties acquisitions dividends stock repurchases and transactions with affiliates An event of default

under the credit facility could result in an acceleration of our obligations under the agreement in the foreclosure on any assets

subject to liens in favor of the credit facilitys lenders and in our inability to borrow additional amounts under the credit

facility

We may be unable to realize expected benefIts from our restructuring and cost savings plan

In order to operate more efficiently and control costs we announce from time to time restructuring and cost savings plans
such as our ongoing cost savings plan implemented in 2012 which may include workforce reductions and other cost

reduction initiatives These plans are intended to generate operating expense savings through selling general and

administrative expense reductions as well as other savings We may undertake further workforce reductions or restructuring
actions in the future These types of cost reduction and restructuring activities are complex If we do not successfully manage
our current restructuring activities or any other restructuring activities that we may undertake in the future expected
efficiencies and benefits might be delayed or not realized and our operations and business could be disrupted Risks

associated with these actions include delays in implementation of anticipated workforce reductions additional unexpected
costs and the failure to meet operational targets due to the loss of employees any of which may impair our ability to achieve

anticipated cost reductions or may otherwise harm our business which could have material adverse effect on our

competitive position results of operations cash flows or financial condition

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable

Item Properties

We lease our manufacturing facility administrative offices operations center sales offices sourcing offices showrooms and
retail store Rios manufacturing facility is located in San Pedro Sula Honduras Our sales offices and showrooms are in

New York New York Our scott james retail store is in Boston Massachusetts and our scott james outlet store is in

Minneapolis Minnesota We have administrative offices in Anderson South Carolina operations centers in New York New
York and Minneapolis Minnesota and sourcing offices in Dongguan China and Hong Kong We believe that all of our

properties are well maintained and suitable for their intended use with the exception of our New York office See Item

Legal Proceedings
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Item Legal Proceedings

New York Office Lease

In July 2007 the Company entered into lease the New York Lease for corporate office space located at 114 West 41St

Street New York NY 10036 the New York Office As part of the New York Lease the landlord Landlord agreed to

commence and substantially complete major capital improvements to the common areas of the New York Office by June

2008 After June 2008 if such capital improvements have not been substantially completed the New York Lease provides

among other things for reduction in rent by one half for each day beyond June 30 2008 that the capital improvements

remain incomplete and are not being diligently prosecuted toward completion

On February 16 2011 the Company filed complaint in the Supreme Court New York County with respect to the New

York Lease The Company asserted claims against the Landlord of the New York Office and the receiver of such property

appointed in coimection with foreclosure action commenced against Landlord by its lender The complaint sought

judgment declaring that the Company is not in default under the New York Lease and that the rent previously paid by

the Company represents the full amount of rent and ii for rescission of the New York Lease as of June 30 2008 by reason

of default by the Landlord with respect to material provision under the New York Lease requiring prompt completion of

major capital improvements of the New York Offices common areas The Supreme Court action was dismissed on

December 16 2011 without prejudice to renew the action if complete relief is not afforded in the Civil Court action

On February 23 2011 the court appointed Receiver of the subject property commenced non-payment proceeding in the

Civil Court of the City of New York against the Company The Receiver seeks payment of allegedly past due and unpaid rent

and additional rent under the New York Lease The Company vigorously denies that any rent or additional rent is due and

owing under the New York Lease and has moved for an order removing this action to the Supreme Court New York County

and consolidating it with the previously commenced action described above The motion for removal and consolidation was

denied by the Supreme Court and the matter has been proceeding
in Civil Court The Company has filed its answer

affirmative defenses and counterclaims and has moved for discovery in that action dated June 16 2011 The motion and

subsequent cross-motion were argued before the court on July 18 2011 On October 2011 that court granted
the

Companys motion for discovery On July 30 2012 the Civil Court commenced trial on the matter The trial was concluded

on December 19 2012 and the respective parties filed post trial briefs and reply briefs with the Court on January 23 and

February 2013 respectively decision by the trial court is expected during the second quarter of 2013 See Item

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Note 7Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities and Note 13 Commitments

and Contingencies to the audited consolidated financial statements

The Company is from time to time involved in other litigation incidental to the conduct of its business none of which is

expected to be material to its business financial condition or operations

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

There is currently no established public trading market for our common stock Our common stock is currently quoted on the

OTC Markets under the symbol HAMP The OTC Markets is centralized quotation service that collects and publishes
market maker quotes for over-the-counter securities in real time Over-the-counter market quotations like those on the OTC
Markets reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent
actual transactions

As of March 2013 the Company had 37 stocldolders of record of our common stock although we believe there are

significantly larger number of beneficial owners The following table sets forth the low and high sales prices of shares of our

common stock for each of the quarters of 2012 and 2011 as reported by the OTC Markets

2012 2011

Low IIih Low Hih-/
Second Quarter 1.90 3.20 3.05 4.25

Fourth Quarter 2.50 3.45 1.85 3.20

The closing stock price on March 2013 was $3.00

Any determination to pay dividends will be made by our Board and will be dependent upon our financial condition results of

operations capital requirements and such other factors as our Board may deem relevant Our revolving credit facility contains

restrictive covenants placing limitations on payment of cash dividends We did not pay dividends on our outstanding stock

during the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

On March 31 2012 and 2011 shares of Hampshire common stock in the amount of 6518 and 2881 respectively were
returned to the Hampshire Group Limited 2009 Stock Incentive Plan which allows employees to satisfi their applicable

withholding tax obligations by using shares of common stock that would otherwise be deliverable upon the vesting of the

restricted stock

In connection with the adoption of the Hampshire Group Limited 2009 Stock Incentive Plan the Stock Plan the Board

authorized 880000 shares of common stock under the Stock Plan and initially approved grants totaling 862500 shares
which consisted of grants to certain employees managers named executive officers and directors Ten percent of each award
of restricted stock was subject to time-based vesting with the remaining 90% of each award subject to performance-based

vesting During 2012 459000 shares of non-vested restricted stock previously granted to certain employees who were

participants in the Stock Plan were surrendered for cancellation by such employees pursuant to transactions that with respect
to each such employee provided that such employee would be granted options to purchase Hampshire Common Stock in

consideration for the cancellation of such shares of restricted stock held by it In connection with such transactions total of

331250 options were granted In addition during 2012 certain other employees who were participants in the Stock Plan

were granted in the aggregate 375750 options to purchase Hampshire Common Stock Twenty-five percent 25% of such

options vested and became exercisable on December 31 2012 and another twenty-five percent 25% will vest and become

exercisable on December 31st of each of 2013 2014 and 2015 and the options will expire on March 30 2022

On October 2012 10455 shares of Hampshire common stock were returned to the Company by Heath Golden pursuant
to net issuance in connection with the settlement of certain Restricted Stock Units in order to satisfy applicable withholding
tax obligations

See Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters for

information regarding our equity compensation plan
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements including the related

notes included herein in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data The selected consolidated financial data

under the captions Statement of Operations Data and Balance Sheet Data as of and for the end of each of the years in the five

year period ended December 31 2012 are derived from our consolidated financial statements The statement of operations

data includes results from continuing operations which excludes the discontinued operations of Hampshire Designers Item

Eyes Marisa Christina Shane Hunter and David Brooks in each year presented Our historical results are not necessarily

indicative of results to be expected in any future period

Year Ended December 31

in thousands except per share data
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Statement of Operations Data fl fl5t O55s t5t5A

esswrr
Selling general and administrative

expenses 33965 27977 16871 15910 20337asaeaas eswarsa aaa
Restructuring costs 644 179 4175 215

eaisssa saaaena
Special costs 4481 4547 3761

Lossfromoperations 11155 21106 11473 11655 9552

Basic loss per share from

continuing operations 1.72 3.41 1.70 1.06 1.91

Basic weighted average common

shares outstanding 7271 5941 5554 5482 6884

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Balance Sheet Data

Restricted cash 2725

dJqnaaa/tflSflaSSShiaS
Total assets 72085 89035 78553 86929 98706

b11SMVSSSSaLSIP ISSSSSaIWIaSJJSG
Total stockholders equity 34339 42407 49402 58849 64797

Excludes discontinued aperations
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion contains statements that are forward-looking These statements are based on expectations and

assumptions that are subject to risks and uncertainties Actual results could differ materially because of among other

reasons factors discussed in the Safe Harbor statement on page ii of this report and Item Risk Factors and elsewhere

in this report The commentary should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes

and other statistical information included in this report

OVERVIEW

The following is graphical illustration it does not represent an actual time period actual revenues actual cash balances
etc of the historical seasonal nature of our business

In the past our business was highly seasonal as result of our product mix including high concentration of sweaters

Although not as significant as in prior years our business continues to maintain fairly high degree of seasonality with

approximately 65% of our sales during 2012 occurring in the third and fourth quarters As result of such seasonality

inventory begins to rise in the second quarter and typically peaks during the third quarter before descending to its cyclical
low in the fourth quarter Trade receivable balances rise commensurately with sales Cash balances follow this cycle as

inventory is purchased product is sold and trade receivables are collected Funding inventory and pending trade receivable

collections deplete cash balances and may require draws from our revolving credit facility in the third or fourth quarters Our

income or loss from continuing operations has generally been correlated with revenue as large percentage of our profits

have historically been generated in the third and fourth fiscal quarters

Seasonality in 2012 declined as result of Rios more even distribution of sales throughout the year as compared to our other

subsidiaries In 2013 and beyond we expect this seasonality to decline further as result of the Dockers and Panama
Jack licenses which we believe will increase our sales during the spring season

Quarters

QI Q2 Q3
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We are provider of fashion apparel across broad range of product categories channels of distribution and price points As

holding company we operate through our wholly-owned subsidiaries Hampshire Brands Inc Rio Garment S.A and scott

james LLC We were established in 1976 and are incorporated in the state of Delaware

Hampshire Brands designs and markets mens sportswear to department stores chain stores and mass market retailers under

licensed brands our own proprietary brands and the private labels of our customers Among others we offer full tops

assortment under the Dockers brand and t-shirt and board short assortment under the Panama Jack brand both of which

are licensed as well as private label t-shirt and sweater offerings to retailers under their private labels

The scott james brand is designer apparel collection for men which includes full sportswear offering It is sold

primarily through upscale department and specialty stores scott james retail shops and online at

www.scottjamesonline.com

Rio acquired on August 25 2011 is Honduras-based apparel manufacturer designing sourcing and manufacturing knit

tops for men women and children which are sold to retailers and distributors primarily in the United States Rios

manufacturing platform primarily supports the vertical specialty store channel Our manufacturing operations begin with the

purchase of fabric and other raw materials from third party suppliers The fabrics are ultimately sewn into finished garments

at our textile facility or at the facilities of third party contractors located in Honduras Rio also purchases yam and outsources

fabric production to third parties where upon completion the fabric returns to the Rio facility for production Our garments

may also be embellished and prepared for retail with any combination of services including ticketing hang tags and

hangers

Our primary strength is our ability to design develop source and deliver quality products within given price range while

providing superior levels of customer service Our diversification of product lines allows for vertical integration through Rio

multi-category licensing through Hampshire Brands and owned lifestyle ways through scott james We have developed

international sourcing abilities that permit us to deliver quality merchandise at competitive prices to our customers

The apparel market is highly competitive Competition is primarily based on product design price quality and service We

face competition
from apparel designers manufacturers importers licensors and our own customers private label programs

many of which are larger and have greater fmancial and marketing resources than we have available to us

The economic environment over the past several years has been challenging and has been characterized by among other

things restrained consumer spending weak credit market conditions and inflationary pressures on our cost of goods In an

effort to preserve gross margin dollars in the face of rising costs of goods and stagnant out the door prices during the past

two years we have taken significant steps to reposition our Company for growth and profitability including

Disposition of the womens businesses In May 2011 we announced significant shift in our growth strategy with the

disposition of our underperforming womens businesses The disposition of these businesses allowed us to focus on

leveraging our operating platform
in the mens business and actively pursue other strategic opportunities On May

2011 in connection with this new strategic direction we sold our womens businesses Hampshire Designers and

Item-Eyes in two separate transactions for total purchase price of $12.3 million plus inventory before consideration

of certain transaction costs and assets and liabilities that were not sold

Integration of Rio On August 25 2011 we reached significant milestone with the acquisition of Rio Rio has

provided us an opportunity to grow our core business into the fast-growing vertical specialty store channel and has

allowed us to leverage our existing operating platforms to expand Rios business into the department and chain store

channels Rio has the ability to produce for variety of apparel categories including performance and fashion Since

completing the acquisition we have augmented Rios infrastructure in place to support growth We are realizing the

benefits of our strategy for Rio as we continue to develop more robust product offering grow its capacity within its

current physical footprint and improve the efficiency of its operations

Added Dockers and Panama Jack licenses while phasing out legacy licenses with declining sales We entered into

multi-year licensing agreement with Dockers for its mens good category tops in the United States As part of

this agreement we oversee the design production sales and distribution of the line to certain chain and department

stores including Kohls Department Stores Inc J.C Penney Company Inc and Sears Holding Corporation The

woven and knit line includes button down shirts polos fleece tops and t-shirts We believe that these additional

categories complement and strengthen the marketability of our Dockers sweater offering and taken together help to

ensure we have compelling international brand to offer to retailers We also entered into licensing agreement with

Panama Jack to provide new line of lifestyle apparel for men including full tops and board short assortment The
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Dockers and Panama Jack licenses are well-recognized growing brands that have allowed us to phase out legacy

licenses with declining sales

Broadening and divers jfying our customer base We remain focused on exploring opportunities to grow our sales and

expand our retail relationships We continued through 2012 to build brand recognition and market presence as

demonstrated by new customer relationship with Bloomingdales Further we have begun new customer

relationships with Wal-Mart and Kmart through our Panama Jack business

Restructuring and cost savings plan In 2012 we implemented cost savings plan primarily through workforce

reduction that has allowed us to operate our business more efficiently and reduce costs

Reorganization plan On January 15 2013 Heath Golden resigned as chief executive officer of the Company At the

time of the resignation the Board of Directors of the Company the Board appointed Paul Buxbaum to serve as the

Companys new chief executive officer Additionally on January 28 2013 the Company entered into an agreement
with Buxbaum Group to provide certain restructuring and advisory consulting services Pursuant to the agreement
Buxbaum Group is tasked with

providing specific recommendations to the Board concerning the organization

operations and expenses to better support the Companys business model and sales levels Additionally under the

agreement Buxbaum Group is responsible for the implementation of such recommendations to the extent adopted by
the Board

Stock and Compensation Plans

The Hampshire Group Limited 2009 Stock Incentive Plan the Stock Plan is designed to assist us in attracting retaining

motivating and rewarding key employees officers directors and consultants and promoting the creation of long term value

for stockiiolders of the Company by closely aligning the interests of these individuals with those of our stockholders The
Stock Plan pennits us to award eligible persons nonqualified stock options restricted stock and other stock-based awards In

connection with the adoption of the Stock Plan the Board authorized 880000 shares of common stock under the Stock Plan

and initially approved grants totaling 862500 shares which consisted of grants to certain employees managers named
executive officers and directors Ten percent of each award of restricted stock is subject to time-based vesting with the

remaining 90% of each award subject to performance-based vesting During 2012 459000 shares of non-vested restricted

stock previously granted to certain employees who were participants in the Stock Plan were surrendered for cancellation by
such employees pursuant to transactions that with respect to each such employee provided that such employee would be

granted options to purchase Hampshire Common Stock in consideration for the cancellation of such shares of restricted stock

held by it In connection with such transactions total of 331250 options were granted In addition during 2012 certain

other employees who were participants in the Stock Plan were granted in the aggregate 375750 options to purchase

Hampshire Common Stock Twenty-five percent 25% of such options vested and became exercisable on December 31
2012 and another twenty-five percent 25% will vest and become exercisable on December 31st of each of 2013 2014 and

2015 and the options will expire on March 30 2022 See Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and

Management and Related Shareholder Matters for infonnation regarding our equity compensation plan

Separate from the Stock Plan we granted to our previous chief executive officer 100000 stock options the Options and

100000 restricted stock units RSUs each on May 2011 and 150000 restricted shares of Hampshire Common Stock

the Restricted Stock on August 25 2011 The Options expire ten years from the grant date and vest ratably over two

years following the grant date One-third of the Options were unvested as of December 31 2012 Each RSU represents the

right to receive one share of the Companys common stock upon settlement The RSUs vest and settle ratably over two years

following the grant date One-third of the RSUs were unvested as of December 31 2012 The shares of Restricted Stock vest

ratably over two
years following the grant date As of December 31 2012 50000 shares of Restricted Stock were unvested

Each of these stock awards were subject to the chief executive officers continued service through the applicable vesting
dates As result of the resignation of our previous chief executive officer on January 15 2013 all of the remaining
unvested Options RSUs and Restricted Stock were forfeited at that time

In addition we adopted the Hampshire Group Limited 2010 Cash Incentive Bonus Plan the Bonus Plan pursuant to

which we will grant annual performance-based bonuses to certain employees managers and named executive officers The

goal of the Bonus Plan is to align the annual interests of our management and other key employees with those of the

Company and our stockholders by providing cash bonus incentive for meeting annual goals set by the Board Target bonus

amounts under the Bonus Plan will be percentage of each participants base salary and actual bonus amounts paid under the

Bonus Plan will depend on the extent to which annual performance metrics are achieved
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See Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Note 15 Stock Plans Compensation Plans and Retirement

Savings Plan to the audited consolidated financial statements for additional discussion of these events

Acquisition of Rio

On August 25 2011 we acquired Rio by way of merger for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $21.6 million

the Merger Upon closing we paid the former Rio equity holders total of $7.0 million in cash $3.5 million of which

was deposited into an escrow account pending certain adjustments We also paid in cash certain liabilities of Rio totaling

approximately $5.9 million We financed the cash portion of the acquisition with cash on hand Of the $3.5 million deposited

into the escrow account we subsequently released $3.1 million to the equity holders with the remaining approximately $0.4

million released back to us pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement Additionally we issued to the former Rio equity

holders an aggregate
of $2.6 million in Hampshire common stock par value $0.10 and held back an additional $6.5 million

of Hampshire common stock par value $0.10 1781798 shares for potential post-closing purchase price adjustments
and

indemnification claims Of the $6.5 million that was held back we have subsequently released to the equity
holders

approximately $3.0 million in Hampshire common stock during 2012 See Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data Note Acquisitions to the audited consolidated financial statements for additional discussion of this event

Discontinued Operations

We continually review our portfolio of labels business lines and divisions to evaluate whether they meet profitability and

performance requirements and are in line with our business focus As part of this review we disposed and discontinued

operations of certain divisions as outlined below

On May 2011 we completed the sale of our womens businesses in two separate transactions to LF USA Inc subsidiary

of Hong Kong-headquartered multinational Li Fung Limited and KBL Group International Ltd for total purchase price

of $12.3 million plus the value of the inventory being sold in the transaction As part of the agreements LF USA Inc

acquired our Hampshire Designers business whose brands include Designers Originals Mercer Street Studio and

Hampshire Studio KBL Group International Ltd acquired our Item-Eyes business whose brands include Requirements

and RQT

As part of the transactions we sold the related inventory as well as customer and production purchase orders and certain

other assets Further severance costs resulting from the transactions were approximately $0.9 million In both cases we

retained ownership of our accounts receivable relating to the shipments prior to the closing date Excluding production

purchase orders liabilities incurred prior to the sale remained with us Net of severance and transaction costs among other

things we recognized $11.8 million gain on the sale of the womens businesses

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States GAAP our consolidated financial

statements reflect discontinued operations separately on the results of operations and financial position For the year
ended

December 31 2012 we had income from discontinued operations net of taxes of $0.8 million compared to income from

discontinued operations of $10.3 million for the year ended December 31 2011 See Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data Note 17 Dispositions and Discontinued Operations to the audited consolidated financial statements for

additional discussion of these events
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RESULTS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Net Sales

Net sales increased by 36.5% to $117.6 million in 2012 from $86.1 million in 2011 The reconciliation of net sales is outlined

in the table below

Annual Rate/Volume

Percentage

of 2011In thousands Dollars

Volume
65956 76.6%

Net sales for the year ended December 31 2012 117560 136.5%

The $31.5 million increase in net sales over the prior year was primarily result of the inclusion of full
year

of Rios net

sales for the year ended December 31 2012 which accounted for an increase in net sales of $37.6 million This was offset

by decrease in net sales of Hampshire Brands of $9.0 million compared to the prior year due to lower volume primarily
associated with the winddown of the JOE Joseph Abboud licensing agreement Rio also sells higher volume of units at

lower price point than Hampshire Brands which has contributed to the significant increase in volume over the prior year We
believe that continued growth at Rio and the Dockers and Panama Jack licensing arrangements for Hampshire Brands
will have an accretive impact to our net sales in 2013

Gross Profit

Gross profit for 2012 was $23.5 million compared with $14.6 million for the prior year which as percentage of net sales

represented an increase from 16.9% to 20.0% The 2012 improvement in gross profit over 2011 was primarily due to the

current
year including full year of operations for Rio In addition cost of goods sold increased to $94.1 million for the year

ended December 31 2012 from $71.6 million for the year ended December 31 2011 primarily due to the acquisition of Rio
The increase in cost of goods sold as result of Rio was $28.7 million which was somewhat offset by volume driven

decrease in cost of goods sold for Hampshire Brands of $5.5 million We expect that increases in volume at Rio and the new
licensing arrangements at Hampshire Brands will contribute to increasing gross profit in 2013

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31 2012 were $34.0 million compared with $28.0

million for the year ended December 31 2011 which as percentage of net sales represented decrease from 32.5% to

28.9% The decrease as percentage of net sales is due to combination of factors including increased sales volume as

compared to fixed expenses and overall reductions in
expense as result of cost savings measures we have implemented

Restructurin2 Costs

During the current year we announced cost savings plan primarily related to workforce reduction We incurred

approximately $0.6 million in severance costs for the
year

ended December 31 2012 We expect that cost savings measures

already implemented will result in annualized savings of $2.2 million in compensation costs Additionally during 2013 we
have been and will continue to work with Buxbaum Group to develop and implement an overall plan to restructure the

organization operations and expenses to better support our Companys business model and sales levels

Loss on Lease Obli2ation

In November 2011 Hampshire employees and office equipment were completely vacated from two of the five floors leased

at the New York office GAAP requires that the fair value of the liability for costs that will continue to be incurred under an

operating lease for its remaining term without economic benefit to the entity shall be recognized at the cease-use date based

on the remaining lease rentals adjusted for the effects of any prepaid or deferred items recognized under the lease and

reduced by estimated sublease rentals that could be reasonably obtained for the property even if the entity does not intend to

enter into sublease We recorded loss on lease charge of $6.3 million during the fourth quarter of 2011 net of the release

of deferred rent attributable to the vacant space See Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Note Loss on

Lease Obligations
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Goodwill Impairment Loss

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least on an annual basis and otherwise when warranted The impairment test involves

comparison of the fair value of its reporting unit as defined under GAAP to carrying amounts If the reporting units

aggregated carrying amount exceeds its fair value then an indication exists that the reporting units goodwill may be

impaired The impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the reporting unit

being measured exceeds its fair value up to the total amount of its net assets Based upon tests performed we recorded an

impairment charge of $1.2 million in connection with the goodwill related to scott james during the second quarter of 2011

We have also evaluated the carrying value of goodwill as of December 31 2012 and have determined that no impairment of

goodwill was necessary See Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates and Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data Note Goodwill and Intangible Assets and Note 14 Fair Value Measurements

Income Taxes

Our income tax expense for the year ended December 31 2012 of $1.0 million was due to the accrual of interest and

penalties on income tax reserves partially offset by the recognition of tax benefits associated with the expiration of certain

statutes of limitations ii foreign income taxes iiiand minimum state and local income taxes

Our income tax benefit for the year
ended December 31 2011 of $1.0 million was mostly due to the recognition of tax

benefits associated with the expiration of certain statutes of limitations that were partially offset by the accrual of additional

interest and penalties on remaining income tax reserves See Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Note 12

Income Taxes

INFLATION

We are subject to increased prices for the products we source due to both inflation and exchange rate fluctuations We have

historically managed to lessen the impact of inflation by achieving sourcing efficiencies controlling costs in other parts of

our operations and when necessary passing along portion of our cost increases to our customers through higher selling

prices We confront increasing inflationary pressures in our cost of goods including
those caused by rising costs in

transportation labor and materials If these costs continue to rise at rates higher than those we have historically experienced

there can be no assurance that we will be successful in passing sufficient portion of such increases onto our customers to

preserve our gross profit

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary liquidity and capital requirements are to fund working capital for current operations consisting of funding the

seasonal buildup in inventories and accounts receivable and funding markdown allowances During the current year we have

expanded the conversion cycle in our manufacturing processes and have more working capital in raw materials inventory

Due to the seasonality of our business cash used in operations typically exceeds cash provided by operations during the first

nine months of the year and as such borrowing under our revolving credit facility if any will generally occur during the

third and fourth quarters of the year Our primary sources of funds to meet our liquidity and capital requirements include

cash on hand funds generated from operations and borrowings under our revolving credit facility

On October 28 2010 we entered into credit agreement referred to as the Credit Facility with Wells Fargo Capital

Finance LLC WFCF which replaced our prior facility in its entirety

On August 15 2011 we entered into First Amendment to Credit Agreement and Consent the Amendment and Consent

with WFCF Pursuant to the Amendment and Consent WFCF as agent under the Credit Facility consented to the Merger and

also waived certain defaults that would otherwise have arisen under the Credit Facility as result of the Merger

On April 30 2012 we entered into second amendment to our credit agreement with WFCF to properly align our Credit

Facility with our business model going forward the Second Amendment The Second Amendment provides for among

other things amendments to the fixed charge coverage ratio and liquidity covenants and the inclusion of certain accounts

receivable in the calculation of the borrowing base under the Credit Facility The Second Amendment also provides for an

increase in the amount of intercompany advances that are permitted under the Credit Facility
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The Credit Facility is $50.0 million asset based revolving credit facility including trade and standby letters of credit with

$30.0 million sub-limit for letters of credit The Credit Facility has term of four years matures on October 28 2014 and is

secured by substantially all assets of the Company and each of its domestic subsidiaries with the exception of intemationally
held inventory Revolving credit loans are limited to borrowing base which considers cash deposited into restricted

account eligible accounts receivable and eligible inventory The Credit Facility contains customary conditions precedent to
each borrowing including absence of defaults and

accuracy of representation and warranties The Credit Facility contains

customary affirmative and negative covenants which include fixed charge coverage covenant that takes effect only when
and so long as we do not meet minimum liquidity and availability requirements that adjust based on the seasonality of our
business The Credit Facility is designed to provide working capital and letters of credit that will be used primarily for the

purchase and importation of inventory and for general corporate purposes

We at our discretion may prepay outstanding principal in whole or part at any time The Credit Facility requires

prepayment of outstanding obligations and accmed interest upon certain events including in the event the amount

outstanding under the Credit Facility exceeds the borrowing base The Credit Facility also contains customary provisions that

enable WFCF to accelerate payment of outstanding obligations under the Credit Facility upon certain events including

among others non-payment of amounts due under the Credit Facility breach of the fixed charge coverage ratio which is

applicable only so long as we do not meet minimum liquidity and availability requirements insolvency bankruptcy
change of control of the Company and failure to perfect certain liens on the collateral securing the obligations under the
Credit Facility We were in compliance with all covenants related to the Credit Facility as of December 31 2012

At December 31 2012 there were no outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility with
approximately $3.1 million of

availability and approximately $12.5 million of cash and cash equivalents that was not included in the availability

calculation The highest level of borrowings outstanding during 2012 was approximately $17.9 million At December 31
2012 letters of credit outstanding were approximately $8.3 million as compared to $4.7 million at December 31 2011 an
increase that is primarily the result of an anticipated increase in spring 2013 deliveries The highest balance of letters of credit

outstanding during the year ended December 31 2012 was approximately $11.2 million attained during June 2012 with an
average balance

outstanding for the year of $7.8 million

We in the normal course of business issue binding purchase orders to secure product for future sales to our customers At
December 31 2012 these open purchase orders amounted to approximately $12.3 million of which approximately $6.3
million were covered by open letters of credit The majority of the purchases made pursuant to open letters of credit will be
received during the first six months of 2013 In addition there were standby letters of credit for approximately $2.0 million
related to other matters

We believe that our cash on hand borrowings available to us under the Credit Facility and cash flow from operations will

provide adequate resources to meet our capital requirements and operational needs for the next twelve months

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Future contractual obligations related to long-term debt deferred compensation non-cancelable operating leases minimum
royalty payments and other obligations at December 31 2012 were as follows

Payments Due By Period

in thousands Totalaaaa
Royalty ayments 7917 1990 2712 3215

Open purchase orders 12261 12261Rtauiapasaa
Total 72797 $21893 $12646 13548 24710

Contingent obligations such as those relating to uncertain tax positions generally do not have specific payment dates and accordingly have been excluded
from the above table We believe that within the next 12 months it is reasonably possible that we could pay an amount less than $0.1 million related to

uncertain tax positions which includes an estimate for interest and penalties

Net cash used in continuing operating activities was $12.4 million for both
years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 There

was an overall decrease in the net change of operating assets and liabilities of approximately $2.6 million which was offset

by decrease in loss from continuing operations after adjustments for non-cash reconciling items

Less

than
13

Years

35
Years

After

Years
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Net cash used in continuing investing activities was approximately $0.8 million for the year ended December 31 2012 as

compared to net cash provided by continuing investing activities of $2.3 million in 2011 The 2012 activity was related to

capital expenditures whereas the 2011 activity primarily reflects the disposition of the womens businesses in May 2011 and

the acquisition of Rio in August 2011 See Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Note Acquisitions and

Note 17 Dispositions and Discontinued Operations

Net cash used in continuing financing activities in the year
ended December 31 2012 was $0.1 million and primarily reflects

the purchases of treasury
stock and repayment of long-term debt Additionally approximately $2.7 million of cash was

restricted temporarily during 2012 to collateralize letters of credit in accordance with our Credit Facility During the
year

ended December 31 2011 net cash provided by continuing financing activities was approximately $2.7 million which

primarily reflected decrease in cash collateralized with our previous issuing bank that was used to pay the related letters of

credit as needed In addition approximately $8.1 million and $4.6 million of cash were restricted temporarily during 2011 in

connection with the acquisition of Rio and to collateralize letters of credit in accordance with our Credit Facility

respectively
See Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Note 10 Borrowings

We spent $0.8 million on capital expenditures during 2012 primarily for computer equipment and software for our reporting

and operating infrastructure as well as leasehold improvements at our leased facilities We currently are considering the

implementation
of an enterprise resource planning system to continue to support our infrastructure

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We utilize letters of credit and are party to operating
leases It is currently not our business practice to have material

relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships such as entities often referred to as structured finance or

special purpose entities which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of

assets liabilities revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities On an ongoing basis we

evaluate our estimates including those related to allowances for markdowns customer returns and adjustments doubtful

accounts inventory reserves discontinued operations and income taxes We base our estimates on historical information and

experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances the results of which

form basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources Actual results may differ from these estimates because of conditions which differ from those assumed

The following critical accounting policies
relate to the more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of

the consolidated financial statements

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from product sales are recognized when ownership is transferred to the customer which includes not only the

passage of title but also the transfer of the risk of loss related to the product At this point the sales price is fixed and

determinable and we are reasonably assured of the collectability of the sale The majority of Rios sales are shipped FOB

destination point and revenue is recognized when the goods are received by the customer The majority of Hampshire

Brands sales are shipped FOB shipping point and revenue is recognized when the customer picks up the goods from our

third party warehouse Shipping and handling charges billed to our customers are not included in net sales as the related costs

are included in selling general and administrative expenses Revenues are reported on net sales basis which is computed

by deducting product returns discounts and estimated returns and allowances We estimate returns and allowances on an

ongoing basis by considering historical and current trends

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method We recognize deferred income taxes net of valuation

allowances for the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of

existing assets and liabilities and their tax basis and net operating loss carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in

income in the period that includes the enactment date
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We evaluate the realizability of deferred tax assets on regular basis for each taxable jurisdiction In making this assessment
we consider whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of deferred tax assets will not be realized The ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those

temporary differences become deductible We consider all available evidence both positive and negative in making this

assessment

If we determine that we expect to realize deferred tax assets in excess of the recorded net amounts reduction in the deferred
tax asset valuation allowance would decrease income tax expense in the period such determination is made

Alternatively if

we determine that we no longer expect to realize portion of our net deferred tax assets an increase in the deferred tax asset
valuation allowance would increase income tax expense in the period such determination is made

We assess our income tax positions and record tax benefits for all
years subject to examination based upon our evaluation of

the facts circumstances and information available at the reporting date For those tax positions where it is more likely than
not that tax benefit will be sustained we have recorded the largest amount of tax benefit that may potentially be realized

upon ultimate settlement with taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information For those income tax

positions where it is not more likely than not that tax benefit will be sustained no tax benefit has been recognized in the

financial statements

Intanib1e Assets

We recorded goodwill and intangibles with definite lives including customer relationships and non-compete agreements in

conjunction with the acquisition of Rio These intangible assets are amortized based on their estimated economic lives

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net identified tangible and intangible assets and
liabilities acquired and is not amortized

GAAP requires us to perform an impairment test of goodwill on an annual basis or whenever events or circumstances make it

more likely than not that impairment of goodwill may have occurred As part of the annual impairment test we first have the

option to make qualitative assessment of goodwill for impairment If we are able to determine through the qualitative

assessment that the fair value of reporting unit more likely than not exceeds its carrying value no further evaluation is

necessary For those reporting units for which the qualitative assessment is either not performed or indicates that further

testing may be necessary we then assess goodwill for impairment using two-step process The first step requires

comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill If that fair value exceeds the

carrying amount the second step of the
process is not required to be performed and no impairment charge is required to be

recorded If that fair value does not exceed that carrying amount we must perform the second step which requires an
allocation of the fair value of the reporting unit to all assets and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had been

acquired in purchase business combination and the fair value of the reporting unit was the purchase price The goodwill
resulting from that purchase price allocation is then compared to the carrying amount with any excess recorded as an

impairment charge

We also review intangible assets with definite lives for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recoverable If the sum of the expected undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying value

of the related asset loss is recognized for the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the intangible asset

We conducted our annual impairment analysis of goodwill on December 31 2012 and based on our analysis no impairment
of goodwill was necessary during 2012 We also noted no events or circumstances during 2012 indicating that the carrying
value of intangible assets with definite lives was not recoverable and as such no impairment of

intangible assets was
recorded during 2012

Allowances for Customer Returns and Adjustments

We reserve for customer returns trade discounts advertising allowances customer chargebacks and for sales and markdown
allowances granted to customers at the end of selling seasons which enable customers to markdown the retail sales prices on
closeout products The estimates for these allowances and discounts are based on number of factors including historical

experience industry trends and specific agreements or negotiated amounts with customers

Further while we believe that we have negotiated all substantial sales and markdown allowances with our customers for the

season recently completed additional allowances for the spring season are anticipated and have been provided for goods
shipped prior to year end and others may be requested by customers for the concluded seasons Likewise should the
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performance of our products at retail establishments exceed our historical performance levels and result in favorable

settlements of previously reserved amounts we may reduce our recorded allowances

Inventory Reserves

We analyze out of season merchandise to determine reserves if any that may be required to reduce the carrying value to net

realizable value Additionally we provide reserves for current season merchandise whose canying value is expected based

on historical experience to exceed our net realizable value Factors considered in evaluating the requirement for reserves

include product styling color current fashion trends and quantities on hand Some of our products are classics and remain

saleable from one season to the next and therefore generally no reserves are required on these products Rio recognizes

reserves on finished goods which are not considered to be first quality An estimate is made of the market value less expense

to dispose of products whose value is determined to be impaired If these products are ultimately sold at less than estimated

amounts additional losses will be recorded Likewise if these products are sold for more than estimated amounts reserves

and related losses may be reduced

Other Operating Lease Obligations

We recognize liability for costs to terminate an operating lease obligation before the end of its term if we no longer derive

an economic benefit from the lease The liability is recognized and measured at its fair value when we determine that the

cease use date has occurred and the fair value of the liability is determined based on the remaining lease rentals due reduced

by estimated sublease rental income that could be reasonably obtained for the property The estimate of subsequent sublease

rental income may change and require future changes to the fair value of the liabilities for the lease obligations

Commitments and Contingencies

Under GAAP we are required to establish reserves for loss contingencies when it is probable and we can reasonably estimate

its financial impact We are required to assess the likelihood of material adverse judgments or outcomes as well as potential

ranges or probability of losses We determine the amount of reserves required if any for contingencies
after carefully

analyzing each individual item We do not recognize gain contingencies until the contingency is resolved We recognize

liabilities for contingencies and commitments when loss is probable and estimable Given the nature of contingencies the

required reserves may change due to new developments in each issue

The Company is currently party in trial in the Civil Court of the City of New York regarding the Companys lease for

corporate office space located at 114 West 4ls Street New York NY 10036 See Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data Note 7Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities and Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies to the

audited consolidated financial statements

Discontinued Operations

We have reclassified from continuing operations the results of operations and fmancial position of the Hampshire Designers

and Item-Eyes divisions separately as discontinued operations
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standard Update ASU 2011-08

Intangibles-Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Goodwilifor Impairment ASU 2011-08 ASU 2011-08 gives entities

testing goodwill for impairment the option of performing qualitative assessment before calculating the fair value of

reporting unit in step of the goodwill impairment test For those entities that determine on the basis of qualitative factors

that the fair value of reporting unit is more likely than not less than the carrying amount an entity is required to perform

step of the goodwill impairment test ASU 2011-08 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years

beginning after December 15 2011 ASU 2011-08 was effective for the Companys fiscal
year ending December31 2012

and the adoption did not have an impact to the Companys consolidated financial statements

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may affect the financial position results of operations or cash flows of the

Company due to adverse changes in financial and product market prices and rates We are exposed to market risk in the area

of changing interest rates We are also exposed to market risk due to increased costs of our products

Our borrowings under the Credit Facility have variable rates based on at our option the prime interest rate of the lending

institution or the LIBOR rate The impact of hypothetical 100 basis point increase in interest rates on our variable rate debt

borrowings under the revolving Credit Facility and prior credit facility would have been minimal in 2012 and 2011 due to

the short-term nature of borrowings under our credit facility during these periods

In purchasing apparel in international markets we initiate production orders that require the payment of U.S dollars Prices

are fixed in U.S dollars at the time the Company submits an order to vendor therefore we do not have any reason to

engage in derivative financial instruments to mitigate these market risks
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Audited Financial Statements

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Hampshire Group Limited

New York New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries the

Company as of December 31 2012 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and cash

flows for the year then ended In connection with our audit of the fmancial statements we have also audited the financial

statement schedule listed in the accompanying index These fmancial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our

audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit

of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as

basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such

opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the fmancial statements and schedule We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries at December 31 2012 and the results of their operations and their

cash flows for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

Also in our opinion the financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial

statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

/s/ Elliott Davis LLC

Elliott Davis LLC

Greenville South Carolina

March 18 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Hampshire Group Limited

New York New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries the

Company as of December 31 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and cash

flows for the
year

then ended In coimection with our audit of the financial statements we have also audited the 2011
financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility
of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based

on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United
States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit

of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as

basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such

opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements and schedule We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries at December 31 2011 and the results of their operations and their

cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company has applied the effect of reclassification

adjustment between retained earnings and additional paid-in capital to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31 2011 As discussed in Note to the fmancial statements the Company has applied the effect of

retrospective adjustment related to purchase accounting to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December

31 2011

Also in our opinion the financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial

statements taken as whole present fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

Is BDO USA LLP

BDO USA LLP

Charlotte North Carolina

March 19 2012 except as to Notes and to the consolidated financial statements as to

which the date is March 18 2013
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In 1luucathI fI /ar 111k 1IIcI sharI

Current assets

cash and cash equiva1ea

Accounts receivable net

Other receivables

Inventories net

Other current assets

Assets of discontinued operations

Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 2012 and 2011

Preferred stock $0 10 par value 1000000 shares authorized

none issued

4r 1t 1ej4F11

Common stock $0.10 par value 13333333 shares authorized

8243784 shares issued at December 31 2012 and 2011 824 824

4itpnaptt 74 fr
Retained eamings 1211 12977

iP$W/4
Total stockholders equity 34339 42407

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

2012 2011

8134

22194

13150

18591

123

7967

17429
9203

16161

Fixed assets net

t1d1i1 it 7IF
Intanible

assets net 14624

cóa i7 1IVAIF
Total assets 72208 89209

b4s4 S$P PIPJPP $1t
Current portion of long-term debt

36Atkb
Accrued expenses

and other liabilities 15631 12574

Total current liabilities 21592 25214

Other long term liabilities 16277 21583
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Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

2012

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

In thousands except per share data
2011

saaareaaseaaeasnni
Cost of goods sold

94106 71588

n4t III SLflLtatSf
Selling general and administrative

expenses 33965 27977Mtent triittISCSIPSti
Loss on lease obligation 6306reasii
Loss from operations 11155 21106flaeSSS$L 411 /a s/ at sit 1k94

Interest incomeSat t/tt at auea at
Other net

204 228uSStJbflIöSŒfl
Income tax provision benefit 1041 972iaaaaiin2PtSdSiStstu
Income from discontinued operations net of taxes 783 10341au
Basic income loss er share

CE air as is
Income from discontinued operations net of taxes 0.11 1.74

Diluted income loss per
shareisessdaa/Lsw alWaS%zSItS$i

aued operations net of taxes

Weighted avr number of shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding 7271 5941
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Treasury Stock

Retained

Earnings Shares Amount

__________ ________

9960

Total

Stockholders

Equit

9960

In thousands except shares

Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Common Stock Additioual

Paid-in

Shares Amount Capital

sfli4$ 4TMiUM
4A4494

tSGe MOeceiItssl 1% 5fl IlL
\441

Net loss

ffiPeted1ck flts is tflLodt 12
Restricted stock forfeitures 2326 316375 2326

tsqtMbi tssra 9ItpQ9y 1jIQ
Stock based compensation

378 378

4ae o1Erquara 21W

BalanceatDecember3l2011 8243784 824 36804 12977 1116796 8198 42407

itt

Restricted stock forfeitures 3472 472875 3472
ft 1$ 6464AI

Issuance of treasury stock for acquisitions

contingent consideration 3011 814096 5979 2968

SoahMtauiMp II Ij 4j r$t 10 f$4I Pt tSPij

Purchase of treasury shares 16973 47 47

W4m$4\ JI1I jhJL IS SD 1$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

In thousands 2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities

Less Income from discontinued operations net of taxes 783 10341aeaoa fl
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing operations to net

cash used in operating activities

dl%SS SSfre %IIII hI SClie
Loss on goodwill impairment 1204

our aaaean as aair-as
Stock based compensation 750 378raseuaraSS atressn
Loss on sale or disposal of fixed assets

seladfl t5
Receivables net 5501 2131rWaraaIflS asraarsarati
Other assets 997 1509awsvart as aaaaaet

Net cash used in continuing operating activities 12400 12439
it aabdaahta1SSo as asma

Net cash used in operating activities 12416 12888
dl Sat

Cajital expenditures 797 409waacIa aaiscae ab er ate
Proceeds from sale of businesses 150324IItta5sa

Cash flows from finanein activitiesassati ass in mesa
Decrease in restricted cash 750 15 457aaaaa assmane mass etc
Re ent of line of credit 27986 15488as sue sear
Repayment of long-term debt 41 38

SSssaintsSrnilitsar eniin nt
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 13301 7919asasassica maSsS ass
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 12500 25801

WI

Cash paid during the year for income taxes 78 62Sin SS Sit-
Non-cash issuance of stock for acquisitions contingent consideration 29685U4S.mSSt ast11414w 51151
Non-cash issuance of treasury stock for employee grant 488

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Note Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire Group or the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiaries Hampshire

Brands inc Hampshire Brands Rio Garment S.A Rio scottjames LLC scottjames and Keynote Services

Limited Keynote Services engages in the apparel business and operates as one segment as its subsidiaries have similar

economic characteristics The Companys corporate offices sales and showrooms are in New York NY with back office

functions in Anderson SC Hampshire Brands source the manufacture of its products from manufacturers worldwide and

their products are sold primarily in the United States to various national and regional department stores and mass merchant

retailers Rio located in San Pedro Sula Honduras is an apparel manufacturer designing sourcing and producing knit tops

for retailers and distributors primarily in the United States scottjames is mens specialty retailer and wholesale provider

Keynote Services based in China assists with the sourcing and quality control needs of Hampshire Brands

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

GAAP requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities

revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities On an ongoing basis management evaluates

its estimates including those related to allowances for markdowns customer retums and adjustments doubtful accounts

inventory reserves discontinued operations and income taxes The Companys revenues have fairly high degree of

seasonality which can cause significant fluctuations in financial results for interim periods The Company sells apparel

throughout the
year

but more than 65% of its annual sales occured in the third and fourth quarters of 2012 primarily due to

the large concentration of sweaters in the product mix and seasonality of the apparel industry in general Management bases

its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that management believes to be reasonable under the

circumstances the results of which form basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that

are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or

conditions however management believes that its estimates including those for the above described items are reasonable

and that the actual results will not vary significantly from the estimated amounts

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method The Company recognizes deferred income

taxes net of valuation allowances for the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their tax basis and net operating loss carryforwards Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those

temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in

tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date

Management evaluates the realizability of deferred tax assets on regular basis for each taxable jurisdiction In making this

assessment management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will

not be realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income

during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible Management considers all available evidence

both positive and negative in making this assessment

if the Company determines that it expects to realize deferred tax assets in excess of the recorded net amounts reduction in

the deferred tax asset valuation allowance would decrease income tax expense in the period such determination is made

Alternatively if the Company determines that it no longer expects to realize portion of its net deferred tax assets an

increase in the deferred tax asset valuation allowance would increase income tax expense in the period such determination is

made

The Company assesses its income tax positions and records tax benefits for all years subject to examination based upon its

evaluation of the facts circumstances and information available at the reporting date For those tax positions where it is more

likely than not that tax benefit will be sustained the Company has recorded the largest amount of tax benefit that may

potentially be realized upon ultimate settlement with taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information

For those income tax positions where it is not more likely than not that tax benefit will be sustained no tax benefit has been

recognized in the financial statements See Note 12Income Taxes
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Allowances for Customer Returns and Adjustments

The Company reserves for customer returns trade discounts advertising allowances customer chargebacks and for sales and

markdown allowances granted to customers at the end of the selling seasons which enable customers to markdown the retail

sales prices on closeout products The estimates for these allowances and discounts are based on number of factors

including historical experience industry trends and specific agreements or negotiated amounts with customers

Further while the Company believes that it has negotiated all substantial sales and markdown allowances with its customers

for the season recently completed additional allowances for the spring season are anticipated and have been provided for

goods shipped prior to year end and others may be requested by customers for the concluded seasons Likewise should the

performance of the Companys products at retail establishments exceed its historical performance levels and result in

favorable settlements of previously reserved amounts recorded allowances may be reduced

Inventory Reserves

The Company analyzes out-of-season merchandise on an individual stock keeping unit or SKU basis to determine reserves
if any that may be required to reduce the carrying value to net realizable value Additionally the Company provides reserves

for current season merchandise whose carrying value is expected based on historical experience to exceed its net realizable

value Factors considered in evaluating the requirement for reserves include product styling color current fashion trends and

quantities on hand Some of the Companys products are classics and remain saleable from one season to the next and
therefore no reserves are generally required on these products The Company recognizes reserves on finished goods
manufactured in its Honduran manufacturing facility that are not considered to be first quality An estimate is made of the

market value less expense to dispose of products whose value is determined to be impaired If these products are ultimately
sold at less than estimated amounts additional reserves may be required Likewise if these products are sold for more than

estimated amounts reserves and related losses may be reduced

Other Operatin2 Lease Obli2ations

The Company recognizes liability for costs to terminate an operating lease obligation before the end of its term if the

Company no longer derives economic benefit from the lease The liability is recognized and measured at its fair value when
the Company determines that the cease use date has occurred and the fair value of the liability is determined based on the

remaining lease rentals due reduced by estimated sublease rental income that could be reasonably obtained for the property
The estimate of subsequent sublease rental income may change and require future changes to the fair value of the liabilities

for the lease obligations See Note 9Loss on Lease Obligations

Goodwill and Intan2ible Assets

The Company recorded goodwill and intangible assets with definite lives including customer relationships and non-compete
agreements in conjunction with the acquisition of Rio These identifiable intangible assets are amortized based on their

estimated economic lives over range of to 11 years Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair

value of net identified tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired and is not amortized

GAAP requires the Company to perform an impairment test of goodwill on an annual basis or whenever events or

circumstances make it more likely than not that impairment of goodwill may have occurred As part of the annual

impairment test the Company first has the option to make qualitative assessment of goodwill for impairment If the

Company is able to determine through the qualitative assessment that the fair value of reporting unit more likely than not

exceeds its carrying value no further evaluation is necessary For those reporting units for which the qualitative assessment

is either not performed or indicates that further testing may be necessary the Company then assesses goodwill for

impairment using two-step process The first step requires comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying

amount including goodwill If that fair value exceeds the carrying amount the second step of the process is not required to

be performed and no impairment charge is required to be recorded If that fair value does not exceed that canying amount
the Company must perform the second step which requires an allocation of the fair value of the reporting unit to all assets

and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired in purchase business combination and the fair value of

the reporting unit was the purchase price The goodwill resulting from that purchase price allocation is then compared to the

carrying amount with any excess recorded as an impairment charge

The Company reviews intangible assets with definite lives for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recoverable If the sum of the expected undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying value

of the related asset loss is recognized for the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the intangible asset
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The Company performs its annual impairment test of goodwill on December 31 of each fiscal year During 2011 the

Company recorded an impairment charge of $1.2 million in connection with the goodwill related to scott james

Management has evaluated the carrying value of goodwill as of December 31 2012 and has determined that no impairment

of goodwill was necessary
The Company also noted no events or circumstances during 2012 indicating that the carrying

value of the intangible assets was not recoverable and as such no impairment of intangible assets was recorded during 2012

See Note 6- Goodwill and Intangible Assets and Note 14Fair Value Measurements

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries The foreign

currency
transactional gains or losses related to the Companys foreign subsidiaries are not significant to the consolidated

financial statements All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Financial Instruments

The Companys financial instruments primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents restricted cash short-term investments

accounts receivable accounts payable and long-term debt The fair value of long-term debt is disclosed in Note 10

Borrowings The carrying amounts of the other financial instruments are considered reasonable estimate of their fair value

at December 31 2012 and 2011 due to the short-term nature of the items See Note 14Fair Value Measurements

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of trade

accounts receivable See Note Receivables

Cash EQuivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with initial maturities of ninety days or less from the date of purchase

At December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company did not have cash invested in interest bearing accounts

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined using the first-in first-out method for all purchased

inventories and average cost for all raw materials work-in-process and finished goods manufactured in the Honduran facility

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost The Company provides for depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated

useful lives of the assets Additions and major replacements or improvements are capitalized while minor replacements and

maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred The cost and accumulated depreciation of assets sold or retired are

removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is included in the results of operations for the period of the transaction

Impairment of Lon2-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets based on criteria set forth in GAAP and records

impairment losses on such assets when indicators of impairment are present
and the fair value estimated for those assets are

less than the assets carrying amount

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues from product sales upon transfer of title and risk of goods is transferred to the customer

At this point the sales price is fixed and determinable and the Company is reasonably assured of the collectability of the

sale The majority of Rios sales are shipped FOB destination point and revenue is recognized when the goods are received

by the customer The majority of the sales of Hampshire Brands and scottjames are shipped FOB shipping point and

revenue is recognized when the customer picks up the goods from third party warehouse Shipping and handling charges

billed to customers are not included in net sales as the related costs are included in selling general and administrative

expenses Revenues are reported on net sales basis which is computed by deducting product returns discounts and

estimated returns and allowances The Company estimates returns and allowances on an ongoing basis by considering

historical and current trends

Advertisin2 Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in Selling general and administrative expenses Total

advertising costs for continuing operations were approximately $0.9 million and $0.7 million for the years ended December

31 2012 and 2011 respectively
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Shipping and Freight Costs

Costs to ship products to customers are expensed as incurred and are included in Selling general and administrative

expenses These costs primarily consist of freight expenses customs duties and fees incurred by third party shippers to

transport product to our customers Total shipping and freight costs for continuing operations were approximately $3.4

million and $1.5 million for the
years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Earnings Loss Per Common Share

Basic earnings loss per common share are computed by dividing net income loss by the weighted-average number of

shares outstanding for the year Diluted earnings per common share are computed similarly however it is adjusted for the

effects of the assumed exercise of the Companys outstanding restricted stock grants or stock options if applicable The

weighted-average number of shares outstanding and the weighted-average number of diluted shares outstanding are

calculated in accordance with GAAP See Note 18Loss Per Share

Stock Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as

expense ratably over the requisite service period net of estimated forfeitures The Company awards market-based restricted

stock or stock options to employees managers named executive officers and directors

During the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company incurred $0.8 million and $0.4 million in stock based

compensation expense The Companys stock-based employee compensation plans arc described more fully in Note 15
Stock Plans Compensation Plans and Retirement Savings Plan

Treasury Stock

The Company accounts for treasury shares using the cost method Purchases of shares of common stock are recorded at cost

and result in reduction of stockholders equity The Company holds repurchased shares in treasury for general corporate

purposes including issuances under various employee compensation plans and consideration for acquisitions When treasury
shares are reissued the Company uses weighted average cost method Purchase costs in excess of reissue price are treated

as reduction of retained earnings Reissue price in excess of purchase costs is treated as additional paid-in capital

Discontinued Operations

In accordance with GAAP the accompanying consolidated financial statements present separately the results of operations
and financial position of discontinued operations See Note 17 Dispositions and Discontinued Operations

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts between Retained earnings and Additionalpaid-in capital

to conform to the current period financial statement presentation There was no impact to the Companys Net loss or Total

stockholders equity as result of such reclassifications

Recent Accounting Standards

In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standard Update ASU 2011-08

Intangibles-Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Goodwill for Impairment ASU 2011-08 ASU 2011-08 gives entities

testing goodwill for impairment the option of performing qualitative assessment before calculating the fair value of

reporting unit in step of the goodwill impairment test For those entities that determine on the basis of qualitative factors

that the fair value of reporting unit is more likely than not less than the carrying amount an entity is required to perform

step of the goodwill impairment test ASU 2011-08 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years
beginning after December 15 2011 ASU 201 1-08 was adopted by the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31
2012 The adoption of ASU 2011-08 did not have an impact to the Companys consolidated financial statements

Subseguent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events from the date of the consolidated balance sheet through the date the financial

statements were issued Other than those events identified in Note Acquisitions Note 13 Commitments and

Contingencies and Note 20 Subsequent Events no material subsequent events were identified
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Note Acquisitions

On August 25 2011 pursuant to merger agreement dated June 13 2011 as amended the Merger Agreement by and

among the Company RG Merger Sub S.A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company Rio Garment de R.L the Rio

Garment de R.L equity holders and BGY II LLC the Company completed its acquisition of Rio Garment de R.L by

way of merger of Rio Garment de R.L with and into RG Merger Sub S.A the Merger for an aggregate purchase

price of approximately $21.6 million RG Merger Sub S.A was subsequently renamed Rio Garment Rio Upon

closing pursuant to the Merger Agreement the Company paid to the former Rio equity holders total of $7.0 million in

cash $3.5 million of which was deposited into an escrow account pending certain post-closing purchase price adjustments

Additionally the Company issued to the former Rio equity holders an aggregate of $2.6 million in Hampshire common stock

par value $0.10 Hampshire Common Stock and held back an additional $6.5 million of Hampshire Common Stock

1781798 shares for potential post-closing purchase price adjustments and indemnification claims The Company also paid

in cash certain liabilities of Rio totaling approximately $5.9 million The Company financed the cash portion of the

acquisition
with cash-on-hand

During 2012 in respect of net working capital purchase price adjustment approximately $1.4 million of the escrowed

amount was paid to the equity holders representative and approximately $0.3 million was released to the Company pursuant

to the terms of the merger agreement An additional $1.8 million of the escrowed amount was paid to the former Rio

equityholders relating to Rios 2011 Adjusted EBITDA as determined in accordance with the merger agreement

Also an additional installment of purchase price which included contingent consideration in the amount of approximately

$6.5 million was to be paid to the sellers based on post-closing purchase price adjustments in accordance with the Merger

Agreement As result of Rios 2011 Adjusted EB1TDA multiplied by three equaling or exceeding $23.0 million and the

release of certain shares previously being held back in connection with potential tax indemnification claims during 2012 the

Company issued to representative of the former Rio equityholders total of $3.0 million of Hampshire Common Stock

pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement The remaining recorded value of the contingent consideration of $3.5 million

to be issued in the Companys stock approximates fair value at December 31 2012

On March 2013 the Company entered into letter agreement with the former Rio equity holders amending the Merger

Agreement such that the approximately $3.0 million of contingent consideration which was due to the former Rio equity

holders within days of 18 months of the closing date will be paid no later than the earlier of April 2013 or within days

of an ownership change as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382 Section 382 Under Section 382 the utilization

of our net operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards may be subject to substantial annual limitations or expiration due to

ownership changes The events that may cause ownership changes include but are not limited to cumulative stock

ownership change greater than 50% over three
year period
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The Company acquired Rio to diversify its distribution channels with the vertical specialty stores and improve its profitability

and growth potential The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities including purchase

price adjustments assumed at the acquisition date

August 25 2011
In thousands

rchLt
Additional mstallment of purchase price 6500

III 11k _______
Assets

shll1ir 41 ilk 1k 41IWI
Accounts receivable

Liabilities

Accounts payable 9098
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4631

Total liabilities assumed 13729

Purchase price net assets acquired 21611

During 2012 we retrospectively adjusted our previously reported preliminary purchase price allocation for changes to our

original estimates These changes are the result of additional information obtained since the filing of our form 10-K for the

year ended December 31 2011 During 2012 the Company received favorable tax ruling on certain tax obligations that

were assumed by the Company upon the acquisition of Rio As result Accrued expenses and other liabilities decreased by

approximately $1.9 million Also an indemnification asset related primarily to the tax withholding obligations decreased by

approximately $2.0 million Among other revisions goodwill increased by approximately $0.1 million as an offset to the

above-mentioned changes

Intangible assets include approximately $16.4 million and $0.2 million attributable to customer relationships and non-

compete agreement respectively that are being amortized on straight-line basis over range of to 11 years that reflects

their estimated economic lives The Companys $2.6 million of goodwill represents the enhancement of the Companys
creative design and retail industry and sourcing relationships and the resulting cross-selling opportunities for the Company
divisions The Company does not expect goodwill to be deductible for tax purposes

The unaudited financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of continuing operations of the

Company and Rio on pro
forma basis as though the Merger had occurred as of the first date of the twelve months ended

December 31 2011 The pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes only and is not indicative of

the results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition had taken place on that date or of results that may
occur in the future The unaudited

pro forma financial information for the year ended December 31 2011 combines the

historical results for the Company and the historical results for Rio The basic and diluted weighted average
number of

common shares outstanding assumes that the Company issued all shares of common stock consideration as contemplated by
the Merger Agreement on January 2011

Intangible assets 16681

Other assets 25

Total assets acquired 35340
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In thousands except per share data December 31 2012 December 312011

ations 17 S77

in connection with the Merger the Company incurred approximately $2.1 million of acquisition related costs during the year

ended December 31 2011 These costs were recorded in Selling general and administrative expenses in the consolidated

statement of operations The Companys results of operations for the year ended December 31 2011 include approximately

$29.2 million attributable to the net sales of Rio since August 25 2011 the date of the Merger Substantially all of Rios sales

were to United States based customers Approximately $1.4 million and $1.3 million of the Companys long lived assets are

attributable to Rio and located in Honduras as of December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Note Receivables and Major Customers

The Company performs ongoing evaluations of the credit worthiness of its customers and maintains allowances for potential

doubtful accounts The accounts receivable at December 31 2012 and 2011 are stated net of allowances for doubtful

accounts customer returns co-op advertising customer charge backs and for sales and markdown allowances of

approximately $4.8 million and $6.1 million respectively

The Company sells principally to department stores chain stores specialty stores mass merchants and other retailers located

principally in the United States The Companys sales to its three largest customers for the year ended December 31 2012

represented 52% 14% and 12% of total sales For the year
ended December 31 2011 these three major customers

represented 30% 16% and 28% of total sales respectively The growth in sales from our largest customer from 2011 to 2012

was primarily due to full year
of sales in 2012 as compared to 2011 as Rio was acquired on August 25 2011 and represents

sales from that date forward At December 31 2012 and 2011 60% and 71% respectively of the total gross trade receivables

were due from these major customers

The major components of other receivables at December 31 2012 and 2011 were as follows

In thousands

2012 2011

aiiw PP
Income tax refunds receivable 52 86

______ _____
Other receivables 338 823

Note Inventories

Inventories at December 31 2012 and 2011 consisted of the following

In thousands

2012 2011

igo i1 JP II1P /IIIP PI1I 1U AU
Work in process

3478 2878pW is$P
Total cost 23144 19731

Inventories net 22194 18591

Diluted weighted average
number of

common shares outstanding 7994 8426
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Note Fixed Assets

Fixed assets at December 31 2012 and 2011 consisted of the following

In thousands
Estimated Useful Lives 2012 2011

h4e5ents rs as
Machinery and equipment years 4484 4094Fun4 Sb 110/ %0/ flsaflL wil
Software

years 1357 1383wse at zt aaaba a5a
Construction in progress 18 387

swia t4ik11 -iraaaasaak
Less accumulated depreciation 9892 8200

iI jp iMt1mm Is 1matSssWanS
Depreciation expense was approximately $2.0 million and $1.9 million for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011
respectively

Note Goodwill and Intangible Assets

GAAP specifies criteria that intangible assets acquired in purchase method business combination must meet in order to be

recognized and reported apart from goodwill and that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be

amortized but instead be tested for impairment at least on an annual basis During the second quarter of 2011 the Company
determined that based on the operating results of scott James an indicator of impairment was present and based upon

present value tests performed the Company recorded an impairment charge of $1.2 million in connection with the goodwill

related to scott James Management has evaluated the carrying value of goodwill as of December 31 2012 and has

determined that no impairment was necessary during 2012

In connection with the Merger the Company recorded identifiable intangible assets As of December 31 2012 $16.4 million

represents customer relationships that are being amortized on straight-line basis over 11 years and $0.2 million represents

non-compete agreement amortizable over years Management noted no events or circumstances during 2012 indicating that

the carrying value of the intangible assets was not recoverable and as such no impairment of intangible assets was recorded

during 2012

The following tables highlight the Companys intangible assets as of December 31 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

In thousands Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Intangible avsetc not subject to ainortccition

Gdwill 2jS9
__________ 2559

__________
Intangible as.s etc subject to amortcatwn

customer relationships

Sl6l 16441 504
Non-compete agreement 240 64 240 16

Total

$16681 2057 16681 520

f/n thousands 2012 2011

Amoflization expee 1537 520

During 2012 we retrospectively adjusted the balance in goodwill as result of finalizing our previously reported preliminary

purchase price allocation for the acquisition of Rio See Note Acquisitions
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Amortization expense
for intangible assets for each fiscal year ending December 31 for 2013 through 2017 is expected to be

approximately $1.5 million

Note Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses
and other liabilities at December 31 2012 and 2011 consisted of the following

2012 2011

In thousands -atPJfSSat/4S4aStSa
Earn-out liability

3500 2750

ESÔISanMah$iSSt ass
Compensation benefits and related taxes 1610 1314as asa tsasasassesssa
Income tax reserves

46

tbilr SitStSt1FsSS$ t/VSSC 4WiJn
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 15631 12574

Accrued rent represents disputed unpaid rent for the Companys New York NY office See Note 13 Commitments and

Contingencies

Earn-out liability represents contingent consideration to be issued in the Companys stock to the former Rio equityholders

See Note 2Acquisitions

Note Other Long-term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities at December 31 2012 and 2011 consisted of the following

2012 2011

In thousandsLuseuasJeaeae$rSS ratst4fl
Deferred tax liabilit 1492 391

i1pitg7Ss ilPW5lSawS SUI$ir Sat
Deferred rent 5479 5519nt1e47 resrsirsirs WC 7f itt
Other 89 267

5r twSSnSMWCjf4tâdYILS C$7CSS$tSi3$
Note Loss on Lease Obligations

In November 2011 the Company completely vacated two of the five floors leased at the New York Office GAAP requires

that the fair value of the liability for costs that will continue to be incurred under an operating lease for its remaining term

without economic benefit to the entity shall be recognized at the cease-use date based on the remaining lease rentals adjusted

for the effects of any prepaid or deferred items recognized under the lease and reduced by estimated sublease rentals that

could be reasonably obtained for the property even if the entity does not intend to enter into sublease The Company

recorded loss on lease charge of $6.3 million during the fourth quarter of 2011 net of the release of deferred rent

attributable to the vacant space The
expense

for 2011 is recorded in Loss on lease obligation in the consolidated statement of

operations As of December 31 2012 the assumptions used in the calculation of the loss on lease obligation include

discount rate of 5% and future sublease income based on the current market rate per square
foot for the New York Office

At December 31 2012 $2.0 million and $4.7 million of deferred loss on lease obligations is included in Accrued expenses

and other liabilities and Other long-term liabilities respectively of the consolidated balance sheet At December 31 2011

$1.5 million and $7.2 million of deferred loss on lease obligations is included in Accrued expenses
and other liabilities and

Other long-term liabilities respectively of the consolidated balance sheet The Company had loss on lease obligations

separate from the New York Office lease of $0.5 million and $0.8 million at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

respectively reconciliation of the beginning and ending liability balances for the total loss on lease obligations is shown in

the tables below
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Year Ended

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

New York New York

In thousands Office Other Total Office Other TotalYS
Chargeredits to expense 86 38 48 7965 475 440

pWJiThe 9rŁI_d __ f3
End of period 6234 488 6722 7871 826 8697

Note 10 Borrowings

Lont-Term Debt

Long-term debt which was collateralized by equipment consisted of note payable that was payable in monthly installments

of $4000 including interest at 6.15% The total amount owed as of December 31 2012 and 2011 was $0 and approximately

$41000 respectively Of the total amount owed the amount included in current liabilities as of December 31 2012 and

2011 was $0 and approximately $36000 respectively

The fair value of the long-term debt at December 31 2011 based on current market interest rates discounted to present value

was approximately equal to the recorded amount

Revolving Credit Facility

On October 28 2010 the Company entered into credit agreement referred to as the Credit Facility with Wells Fargo

Capital Finance LLC WFCF

Approximately $0.3 million and $0.5 million of capitalized credit facility fees net of accumulated amortization are included

in Other Assets in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively Amortization expense for

the Credit Facility costs for both the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 was approximately $0.2 million For each

fiscal year ending on December 31 for 2013 and 2014 amortization expense relating to credit facility costs is expected to be

approximately $0.2 million

On August 15 2011 the Company entered into First Amendment to Credit Agreement and Consent the Amendment and

Consent with WFCF Pursuant to the Amendment and Consent WFCF as agent under the Credit Facility consented to the

Merger and also waived certain defaults that would otherwise have arisen under the Credit Facility as result of the

Merger The Amendment and Consent also provides that upon satisfaction of certain conditions certain provisions of the

Credit Facility will be amended to permit among other things the financing of the operations by means of loans advances or

other cash investments the purchase of accounts receivable and inclusion of such purchased receivables in the calculation of

the borrowing base under the Credit Facility certain transactions with affiliates and the existence of certain indebtedness and

liens on the property of the acquired company that were not expected to be paid in full or terminated and released in

connection with the Merger

On April 30 2012 the Company entered into Second Amendment to Credit Agreement the Second Amendment with

WFCF to better align certain Credit Facility covenants to the Companys go-forward business model The Second

Amendment provides for among other things amendments to the fixed charge coverage ratio and liquidity covenants and

the inclusion of certain accounts receivable in the calculation of the borrowing base under the Credit Facility The Second

Amendment also provides for an increase in the amount of intercompany advances that are permitted under the Credit

Facility

The Credit Facility is $50.0 million asset based revolving credit facility including trade and standby letters of credit with

$30.0 million sub-limit for letters of credit The Credit Facility has term of four years matures on October 28 2014 and is

secured by substantially all assets of the Company and each of its domestic subsidiaries with the exception of internationally

held inventory Revolving credit loans are limited to borrowing base which considers cash deposited into restricted

account eligible accounts receivable and eligible inventory The Credit Facility contains customary conditions precedent to

each borrowing including absence of defaults and accuracy of representation and warranties The Credit Facility contains

customary affirmative and negative covenants which include fixed charge coverage covenant that takes effect only when
and so long as the Company does not meet minimum liquidity and availability requirements that adjust based on the
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seasonality of the Companys business The Credit Facility is designed to provide working capital and letters of credit that

will be used primarily for the purchase and importation of inventory and for general corporate purposes

The Company at its discretion may prepay outstanding principal in whole or part at any time The Credit Facility requires

prepayment of outstanding obligations and accrued interest upon certain events including in the event the amount

outstanding under the Credit Facility exceeds the borrowing base The Credit Facility also contains customary provisions that

enable WFCF to accelerate payment of outstanding obligations under the Credit Facility upon certain events including

among others non-payment of amounts due under the Credit Facility breach of the fixed charge coverage ratio which is

applicable only so long as the Company does not meet minimum liquidity and availability requirements insolvency

bankruptcy change of control of the Company and failure to perfect certain liens on the collateral securing the obligations

under the Credit Facility Management believes the Company was in compliance with all covenants related to the Credit

Facility as of December 31 2012

The obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by first priority security interest in certain assets of the Company

and the domestic subsidiaries of the Company that are party to the Credit Facility in their capacity as borrowers or party to

the separate guaranty agreement executed in connection with the Credit Facility ii pledge of all issued and outstanding

common stock of each operating domestic subsidiary of the Company and iii an assignment of proceeds of insurance

covering collateral

interest accrues on outstanding indebtedness under revolving credit loans at an annual rate equal to the LIBOR Rate as

defined in the Credit Facility plus 2.50% for obligations with LIBOR based interest rate or base rate equal to 1.75%

plus the greatest of the Federal Funds Rate as defined in the Credit Facility plus 0.50% iione-month LIBOR rate plus

1.50% and iiithe prime rate of interest announced from time to time by WFCF at its principal office All interest is

calculated on the basis of actual number of days elapsed based on 360 day year In addition the Credit Facility requires the

Company to pay certain customary fees costs and expenses of WFCF

At December 31 2012 there were no outstanding borrowings and approximately $8.3 million outstanding under letters of

credit Borrowing availability was approximately $3.1 million at December 31 2012 and the Company had approximately

$12.5 million of cash and cash equivalents not included in the availability calculation

Note 11 Stockholder Rights Plan

On August 13 2008 the Board adopted Stockholder Rights Plan the Rights Plan in which preferred share purchase

rights Right were distributed as dividend at the rate of one Right for each outstanding share of common stock as of the

close of business on August 25 2008 There were 5469165 outstanding shares of common stock on August 25 2008 and

the Rights extend to shares issued after this date The Rights are intended to enable all of the Companys stockholders to

realize the long-term value of their investment in the Company The Rights will not prevent takeover but should encourage

anyone seeking to acquire the Company to negotiate with the Board prior to attempting takeover The Rights will expire on

August 23 2013

Each Right will entitle stockholders in certain circumstances to buy one one-thousandth of newly issued share of Series

Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the Company at an exercise price of $33.00 The Rights will be exercisable and

transferable apart from the common stock only if
person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the

common stock such person or group an Acquiring Person except subject to certain limitations for stockholders who

together with their affiliates and associates in excess of 15% of the common stock as of August 13 2008 or commences

tender or exchange offer upon consummation of which person or group would own 15% or more of the outstanding

common stock In accordance with the Merger Agreement dated June 13 2011 the Rights Plan was amended to permit the

issuance of Hampshire Common Stock to the former Rio equity holders in connection with the Merger

if any person
becomes an Acquiring Person other than pursuant to an offer for all shares which is determined by the Board to

be fair to and otherwise in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders then each Right not owned by an Acquiring

Person or certain related parties will entitle its holder to purchase at the Rights then-current exercise price shares of

common stock or in certain circumstances as determined by the Board cash other property or other securities having

value of twice the Rights exercise price In addition if after any person has become an Acquiring Person the Company is

involved in merger or other business combination transaction with another person
in which its common stock is changed or

converted or sells 50% or more of its assets or earning power to another person each Right will entitle its holder to purchase

at the Rights then-current exercise price shares of common stock of such other person having value of twice the Rights

exercise price
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The Company will generally be entitled to redeem the Rights at $0.01 per Right at any time until person or group has

become an Acquiring Person

Note 12 Income Taxes

The components of loss before income tax provision benefit for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 consists of

the following

2012 2011

16049 13558

_____
Loss before income tax provision benefit 10698 10932

The income tax provision benefit related to continuing operations for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

consists of the following

In thousands

Current

Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for income tax purposes

Significant components of the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 2012 and 2011 are as

follows

In thousands

Deferred tax assets

2012 2011

1t1 11111 $I hIP
Accounts receivable reserves 521 341

41 1111 544L$
Unrecognized tax benefits 1618 1655jjj lt %i1 jjiglt
Deferred compensation 296 205swa lilt OC ilk
Loss on lease obligations 2678 3486

Foreign tax credit ca forwards 890 255

ii IIcfoÆit t1iII II 411
Capital loss and AMT credit

carryforwards 83 164

I1erid IfIiseis iii Ilk 1i48 IlhIk lhi 21II Ilk
Less valuation allowances 29193 25827

In thousands

Us

2012 2011

ILIlIt irhIhk
Foreign 56 231p ilk IlL sJIlL iqIlk
Total current 151 972

DFjIPI
Federal

T1j iIkliIltlku//h VIlJ41iIUL
State and local

lifTulefw upji

Total income tax provision benefit 1041 972
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Basis in fixed assets 708 989-ri
Foreign tax withholding 890

Total deferred tax liabilities 5145 2014

GAAP requires companies to assess whether valuation allowances should be recorded to offset its deferred tax assets based

on consideration of all available evidence using more likely than not standard In making such assessments significant

weight is given to evidence that can be objectively verified companys current andlor previous losses are given more

weight than its future projections cumulative loss position is considered significant factor that is difficult to overcome

The Company evaluates its deferred tax assets each reporting period including assessment of its cumulative loss position to

determine if valuation allowances are required significant negative factor is the Companys cumulative loss position This

combined with uncertain near-term economic conditions reduces the Companys ability to rely on projections of future

taxable income in establishing its deferred tax assets valuation allowance Due to the weight of the significant negative

evidence GAAP requires that valuation allowance be established on all of the Companys net deferred tax assets

The valuation allowances do not impact the Companys cash position nor do they preclude the Company from using net

operating loss carryforwards andlor carrybacks tax credits or other deferred tax assets in the future Further the valuation

allowances are not the result of significant change in the Companys view of its long-tenn financial outlook

The following table reconciles the income tax expense benefit from continuing operations computed at the U.S federal

statutory tax rates to the income tax expense benefit for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

In thousands exce Ipercenta es

Income tax benefit at the federal statutory rate 3857 7233WiF
Changes in uncertain tax positions 73 960

har iF3 Ia4i
Changes in valuation allowances attributable to

tax on foreign eamings 2528 1025sn

Permanent differences net 1094 923

Differences between current and deferred tax rates 13 83Wb rVJPitr
Foreign tax credits 634 255rp
State tax refunds 60

_____
Consistent with OAAP the Company determines whether the benefits of tax positions are more likely than not to be

sustained upon audit based on the technical merits of the tax position For tax positions that are more likely than not to be

sustained upon audit the Company recognizes the largest amount of the benefit that is more likely than not to be realized

upon settlement with the taxing authority For tax positions that are not more likely than not to be sustained upon audit the

Company does not recognize any portion of the benefit in the financial statements The Company recognizes interest and

penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as component of taxes on income in the consolidated statements of

operations
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The Companys liability for unrecognized tax benefits was $4.6 million and $4.5 million as of December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively The Companys liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2012 and 2011 includes accrued

interest of $1.9 million and $1.8 million respectively and penalties of $0.2 million and $0.3 million respectively If the

Company were to recognize these benefits the effective rate would reflect favorable net impact of $1.5 million and $1.6

million excluding interest and penalties in 2012 and 2011 respectively The Company recognized net tax
expense

for

interest of $0.1 million during 2012 and no net tax expense or benefit for interest during 2011 The Company recognized no

net tax expense or benefit for penalties during 2012 and 2011

During 2013 the Company anticipates that total unrecognized tax benefits will decrease by approximately $2.3 million

including interest of approximately $0.8 million and nominal penalties due to the lapsing of statutes of limitations within 12

months of December 31 2012

reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the total amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

In thousands 2012 2011

J11 ffTh ater
Decreases in tax

jositions
for prior years 16 22

bcT4SSOIcI i4 IL 7SR 1fle
Settlements

flLkeiJ4V%l_tp
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2539 2673

The Company elected to carry back its 2009 federal net operating loss to tax years 2004 and 2005 As result the statute of

limitations with respect to the Companys federal income tax returns is open for tax years 2004 and 2005 up to the amount of

the 2009 federal net operating loss carryback In addition the Companys federal statute of limitations is open for tax years
2009 and beyond With limited exceptions the statutes of limitations for state income tax retums remain open for tax years

2008 and beyond The Company also files income tax retums in Hong Kong and Honduras The statute of limitations for the

Companys Hong Kong income tax retums is open for tax years 2006 and beyond and the statute of limitations for the

Companys Honduran income tax retums is open for tax years 2012 and beyond

As of December 31 2012 the Company has net operating loss carryforwards for U.S federal income tax
purposes

of $50.3

million which expire in varying amounts from 2019 to 2032 Approximately $3.9 million of these federal net operating loss

carryforwards were obtained in the acquisition of Marisa Christina in May 2006 The Company has state net operating loss

carryforwards of $71.8 million as of December 31 2012 expiring from 2013 to 2032 Approximately $0.7 million of these

state net operating loss carryforwards were obtained in the acquisition of Marisa Christina in May 2006 Valuation

allowances have been established for all of these federal and state net operating loss carryforwards due to the uncertainty of

their future usage

Rio operates under Honduran Free Trade Zone Regime This regime exempts Rio from Honduran municipal taxes asset

taxes and income taxes To maintain the exemption Rio must export at least 95% of its annual production currently Rio

exports 99% of its production GAAP requires presumption that all undistributed subsidiary eamings including

undistributed foreign eamings will be transferred to the parent unless sufficient evidence shows that subsidiary has

invested or will invest the undistributed eamings indefinitely Currently the Company cannot conclude that Rios
undistributed foreign earnings will be invested indefinitely Thus the Company has recorded $0.9 million in deferred foreign

income tax expense which represents 10% Honduran dividend withholding tax on such undistributed foreign eamings for

the year ended December 31 2012
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Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases premises and equipment under operating leases having terms from month-to-month to fifteen years
and

one month At December 31 2012 ffiture minimum lease payments under leases having an initial or remaining non-

cancelable term in excess of one year are as set forth in the table below

Year In thousandsar
2014 4888

rW ea racecr staina ethl IS
2016 139aa aeaaassasras

Thereafter 24710

ctc /P sa
At December 31 2012 future rental revenue to be received under non-cancellable subleases having an initial or remaining

non-cancelable term in excess of one year are as set forth in the table below

Year In thousands

a2ot r.eass.assSWaaS\ i18IAP
2014 95aaa a7a iPPAS $54I
2016 25

eaeancrewaarass
1004

For the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 rent expense for operating leases was approximately $2.9 million and $4.1

million respectively

The Company entered into 15 year one month lease of approximately 77000 square feet of office space in New York NY

on July 11 2007 the New York Lease The New York Lease provides for minimum payments of $63.7 million over the

lease term The Companys possession of the space commenced in September 2007 and lease payments began in March

2008 The New York Lease includes guaranteed minimum consumer price index CPI increases that commenced in 2009

and tiered rent escalations commencing in 2010 The New York Lease and associated incentives are being amortized on

straight-line basis over the expected lease term including any rent holidays guaranteed minimum CPI increases and tiered

rent escalations

As part of the New York Lease the landlord Landlord agreed to commence and substantially complete major capital

improvements to the common areas of the New York Office by June 2008 After June 2008 if such capital improvements

have not been substantially completed the New York Lease provides among other things for reduction in rent by one half

for each day beyond June 30 2008 that the capital improvements remain incomplete and are not being diligently prosecuted

toward completion

On February 16 2011 the Company filed complaint in the Supreme Court New York County with respect to the New

York Lease The Company asserted claims against the Landlord of the New York Office and the receiver of such property

appointed in connection with foreclosure action commenced against Landlord by its lender The complain sought

judgment declaring that the Company is not in default under the New York Lease and that the rent previously paid by

the Company represents the full amount of rent and ii for rescission of the New York Lease as of June 30 2008 by reason

of default by the Landlord with respect to material provision under the New York Lease requiring prompt completion of

major capital improvements of the New York Offices common areas The Supreme Court action was dismissed on

December 16 2011 without prejudice to renew the action if complete relief is not afforded in the Civil Court action

On February 23 2011 the court appointed Receiver of the subject property
commenced non-payment proceeding in the

Civil Court of the City of New York against the Company The Receiver seeks payment of allegedly past due and unpaid rent

and additional rent under the New York Lease The Company vigorously denies that any rent or additional rent is due and

owing under the New York Lease and has moved for an order removing this action to the Supreme Court New York County
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and consolidating it with the previously commenced action described above The motion for removal and consolidation was

denied by the Supreme Court and the matter has been proceeding in Civil Court The Company has filed its answer

affirmative defenses and counterclaims and has moved for discovery in that action dated June 16 2011 The motion and

subsequent cross-motion were argued before the court on July 18 2011 On October 2011 that court granted the

Companys motion for discovery On July 30 2012 the Civil Court commenced trial on the matter The trial was concluded

on December 19 2012 and the respective parties filed post trial briefs and reply briefs with the Court on January 23 and

February 2013 respectively decision by the trial court is expected during the second quarter of 2013 See Note

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

The Company has entered into licensing agreements with several companies for the use of certain trademarks for the

marketing of products produced by the Company These contracts normally have term of three years and provide for

minimum annual royalty payments The future minimum royalty payments as of December 31 2012 are set forth in the table

below

\ea
In IhOfl.WUlS

2013 L990
2014 2.712

2015 3215

7917

For the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 royalty expenses for licensing for continuing operations were

approximately $3.4 million and $3.8 million respectively

The Company in the normal course of business issues binding purchase orders to secure product for future sales to its

customers At December 31 2012 these open purchase order commitments amounted to approximately $12.3 million of

which approximately $6.2 million were covered by letters of credit The majority of the product is scheduled to be received

during the first six months of 2013 at which time these commitments will be fulfilled In addition there were standby letters

of credit for approximately $2.0 million related to other matters

The Company is from time to time involved in other litigation incidental to the conduct of its business none of which is

expected to be material to its business fmancial condition or operations

Note 14 Fair Value Measurements

GAAP defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer liability an exit price
in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on

the measurement date GAAP also established fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of

observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value As of December 31 2012 the

Company did not have any assets measured at fair value on recuning basis that would require disclosure based on the fair

value hierarchy of valuation techniques

In addition certain non-financial assets and liabilities are to be initially measured at fair value on non-recurring basis This

includes items such as non-financial assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in business combination but not

measured at fair value in subsequent periods and non-financial long-lived assets measured at fair value for an impairment
assessment In general non-financial assets and liabilities including goodwill and property and equipment are measured at

fair value when there is an indication of impairment and are recorded at fair value only when impairment is recognized
The Company recorded an impairment charge of $1.2 million in connection with the goodwill related to scott james during

2011 See Note Goodwill and Intangible Assets
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Note 15 Stock Plans Compensation Plans and Retirement Savings Plan

Equity Plans

The Hampshire Group Limited 2009 Stock Incentive Plan the Stock Plan is designed to assist the Company in attracting

retaining motivating and rewarding key employees officers directors and consultants and promoting the creation of long-

term value for stockholders of the Company by closely aligning the interests of these individuals with those of the

Companys stockholders though the Companys stockholder will experience dilution when such shares vest The Stock Plan

permits the Company to award eligible persons nonqualified stock options restricted stock and other stock-based awards

In connection with the adoption of the Stock Plan the Board authorized 880000 Stock Plan shares and approved grants of

restricted stock under the Stock Plan to employees managers named executive officers and directors Ten percent of each

award of restricted stock was subject to time-based vesting the Time-Vested Shares and the remaining 90% of each

award of restricted stock was subject to performance-based vesting the Performance-Vested Shares No Performance-

Vested Shares vested during 2011 During the year ended December 31 2012 459000 shares of non-vested restricted stock

previously granted to certain employees who were participants in the Stock Plan were surrendered for cancellation by such

employees pursuant to transactions that with respect to each such employee provided that such employee would be granted

options to purchase Hampshire Common Stock in consideration for the cancellation of such shares of restricted stock held by

it In connection with such transactions total of 331250 options were granted

The following summarizes the activity for the Stock Plans non-vested restricted stock for the years
ended December 31

2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Weighted Weighted

Average Fair Average Fair

Value at Value at

Shares Grant Date Shares Grant Date

in addition during 2012 certain other employees who were participants in the Stock Plan were granted in the aggregate

375750 options to purchase Hampshire Common Stock such that Twenty-five percent 25% of such options vested and

became exercisable on December 31 2012 and another twenty-five percent 25%will vest and become exercisable on

December 31st of each of 2013 2014 and 2015 and the options will expire on March 30 2022

For the 707000 options issued during the year
under the Stock Plan the Company used the Black-Scholes option pricing

model to estimate the weighted average per
share grant date fair value The weighted average assumptions used in the Black

Scholes option pricing models included risk-free interest rate of 1% for the periods within the expected life of the option

based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant an expected life of options granted to be 6.1 years

the midpoint between the
average vesting term and the contractual term an expected volatility of 79% for the periods of

the expected life of the option determined using historical volatilities based on historical stock prices and an expected

dividend yield of 0% that is based on the Companys historical practice and expected annual dividend

Granted restricted stock
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summary of stock options under the Stock Plan is presented in the table below

Weighted-

Average

Exercise

Price

Weighted-

Average

Remaining

Contractual

Life

Separate from the Stock Plan the Company granted 100000 stock options the Options on May 2011 to the chief

executive officer The Options expire ten years from the grant date and vest ratably over two years following the grant date

subject to the chief executive officers continued service through the applicable vesting dates 33333 of the Options vested

on the grant date and an additional 33333 of the Options vested on May 2012 As of December 31 2012 33334 of the

Options were unvested The weighted average
exercise price was $3.09 per option During fiscal year 2012 no Options were

exercised forfeited or expired The remaining contractual term for the Options is approximately 8.3 years The weighted

average per share grant date fair value of the Options was $1.92 per option The Company used the Black-Scholes option

pricing model to estimate the weighted average per share grant date fair value The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes

option pricing model included risk-free interest rate of 3% for the periods within the expected life of the option based on

the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant an expected life of options granted to be 5.5 years the

midpoint between the average vesting term and the contractual term an expected volatility of 70% for the periods of the

expected life of the option determined using historical volatilities based on historical stock prices and an expected

dividend yield of 0% that is based on the Companys historical practice and expected annual dividend Subsequent to

December 31 2012 the Companys chief executive officer resigned and the remaining unvested options were forfeited at

that time See Note 19 Restructuring and Cost Savings Plan

The Company also granted 100000 restricted stock units RSUs on May 2011 to the chief executive officer Each RSU
represents the right to receive one share of the Companys common stock upon settlement The RSUs will vest and settle

ratably over two
years following the grant date subject to the chief executive officers continued service through the

applicable vesting dates As previously noted subsequent to December 31 2012 the Companys chief executive officer

resigned and the remaining unvested RSUs were forfeited at that time

2012

Aggregate

Intrinsic

ValueOptions

1IIW IvII it II %ILb %Ii it%%
Granted during the period 707000 2.25

imunr mun iiu

Canceled forfeited or expired during the period 151750 2.05

Tand4hg 5en4 IL IIL3
Vested and expected to vest at December 31 2012 555250 2.30 9.33 4430000kj iiihi-vii titr iairIll

Exercise prices for options outstanding under the Stock Plan at December 31 2012 ranged from $2.05 to $3.48 The intrinsic

value is based on the Companys market price of stock at December 31 2012 of $3.02

The following table summarizes the stock options under the Stock Plan that are expected to vest is as follows

2012

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Grant

Exercise Date Fair-

Options Price Value

in11kbdWddi III
Granted during the period 707000 2.25 1.54

Canceled forfeited or expired during the period 151750 2.05 1.40

Al /11 1F
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The following table summarizes the activity for the non-vested RSUs granted on May 2011 for the
years

ended December

31 2012 and 2011
2012 2011

Weighted

Average Fair

Value at

Grant Date

Weighted

Average Fair

Value at

Shares Grant Date Sharesjr
Granted 100000 3.09

$P iW 8ddt4F

Shares

Granted 150000 2.74

Compensation expense related to the equity plans is recorded in Selling general and administrative expense
in the

consolidated statements of operations on straight-line basis over the vesting periods During the years ended December 31

2012 and 2011 the Company incurred $0.8 million and $0.4 million in compensation cost related to all stock awards and was

reflected as non-cash equity compensation on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows At December 31 2012 there was

$0.6 million in unrecognized compensation expense related to stock awards to be recognized over period of approximately

three years

Cash Incentive Plan

The Company adopted The Hampshire Group Limited 2010 Cash Incentive Bonus Plan the Bonus Plan pursuant to

which the Company will grant annual performance-based bonuses to certain of its employees The goal of the Bonus Plan is

to align the annual interests of management and other key employees with those of the Company and its stockholders by

providing cash bonus incentive for meeting annual goals set by the Board Target bonus amounts under the Bonus Plan are

percentage of each participants base salary and actual bonus amounts paid under the Bonus Plan will depend on the extent

to which annual performance metrics are achieved The Company did not grant bonus under the Bonus Plan for fiscal years

2012 and 2011

On August 25 2011 the Company granted 150000 restricted shares of the Hampshire Common Stock the Restricted

Stock to the chief executive officer The shares of Restricted Stock will vest ratably over two years following the grant

date subject to the chief executive officers continued service through the applicable vesting dates As noted above the

Companys chief executive officer resigned subsequent to December 31 2012 and the remaining unvested restricted shares

were forfeited at that time

The following table summarizes the activity for the non-vested Restricted Stock granted on August 25 2011 for the year

ended December 31 2011

2012 2011

Weighted Weighted

Average Fair Average Fair

Value at Value at

Grant Date Shares Grant Date
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Retirement Savin2s Plan

The Company and certain subsidiaries have 401k retirement savings plan under which employees may participate after

having completed certain service requirements and meeting certain age requirements The Companys matching contribution

is determined annually at the discretion of the Board All Company matching contributions vest fully after six years of

employment The Board suspended matching contributions in May 2009 and resumed matching contributions effective

January 2012 Matching contributions for the
year ended December 31 2012 were $0.1 million

Note 16 Related Party Transactions

Upon closing on August 25 2011 pursuant to the Merger Agreement the Company paid to the equityholders of Rio the

Equityholders total of $7.0 million in cash $3.5 million of which was deposited into an escrow account pending certain

post-closing purchase price adjustments Approximately $0.4 million due from escrow relating to purchase price adjustment

is recorded in Other receivables as of December 31 2011 Additionally the Company issued to the Equityholders an

aggregate of $2.6 million of Hampshire Common Stock and held back an additional $6.5 million of Hampshire Connnon
Stock for potential post-closing purchase price adjustments and indemnification claims The Equityholders include Mr
Buxbaum director of the Company who was appointed to the position of chief executive officer subsequent to December

31 2012 See Note 19 Restructuring and Cost Savings Plan The Equityholders also include current director Mr Yogel

and the current president of Rio Mr Gren

In addition pursuant to the Merger Agreement at closing the Company repaid to Buxbaum Company LLC an entity

affiliated with and controlled by Mr Buxbaum indebtedness of Rio totaling $2.2 million YIH III LLC an entity affiliated

with and controlled by Mr Yogel indebtedness of Rio totaling $0.8 million and repaid to David Gren indebtedness of Rio

totaling $0.1 million In addition Buxtradefina LLC BTF an entity affiliated with and controlled by Mr Buxbaum was

co-obligor of promissory note issued by Rio to third party in connection with the Merger Agreement the Company
agreed to indemnify BTF for any amounts required to be paid by BTF under the terms of such note The promissory note

issued by Rio was fully paid as of December 31 2011

During 2012 in respect of net working capital purchase price adjustment approximately $1.4 million of the escrowed

amount was paid to the equity holders representative and approximately $0.3 million was released to the Company pursuant

to the terms of the merger agreement An additional $1.8 million of the escrowed amount was paid to the Equityholders

relating to Rios 2011 Adjusted EBITDA as determined in accordance with the merger agreement

Also an additional installment of purchase price which included contingent consideration in the amount of approximately

$6.5 million was to be paid to the sellers based on post-closing purchase price adjustments in accordance with the Merger

Agreement As result of Rios 2011 Adjusted EBITDA multiplied by three equaling or exceeding $23.0 million and the

release of certain shares previously being held back in connection with potential tax indemnification claims during 2012 the

Company issued to representative of the Equityholders total of $3.0 million of Hampshire Common Stock pursuant to the

terms of the merger agreement The remaining recorded value of the contingent consideration of $3.5 million approximates

fair value at December 31 2012

On March 2013 the Company entered into letter agreement with the former Rio equity holders amending the Merger

Agreement such that the approximately $3.0 million of contingent consideration which was due to the former Rio equity

holders within days of 18 months of the closing date will be paid no later than the earlier of April 2013 or within days

of an ownership change as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382 Section 382 Under Section 382 the utilization

of our net operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards may be subject to substantial annual limitations or expiration due to

ownership changes The events that may cause ownership changes include but are not limited to cumulative stock

ownership change greater than 50% over three year period

The Company paid approximately $0.2 million for screen printing services to vendor affiliated with Mr Gren for each of

the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 Accounts payable to this vendor was approximately $0 and $0.1 million at

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Note 17 Dispositions and Discontinued Operations

The Company continually reviews its portfolio of labels business lines and divisions to evaluate whether they meet

profitability and performance requirements and are in line with the Companys business strategy As part of this review the

Company has disposed and discontinued operations of certain divisions as outlined below
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On May 2011 in two separate transactions the Company sold certain assets of Hampshire Designers for total purchase

price of $12.0 million plus inventory valued at approximately $2.4 million and certain assets of Item-Eyes for total

purchase price of $0.3 million plus inventory and factory advances valued at approximately $0.9 million to third party

buyers Inventory in transit valued at $1.6 million and $0.4 million for Hampshire Designers and Item-Eyes respectively

was also purchased by each buyer and was payable upon delivery As part of the sale transactions the Company transferred

and assigned certain assets primarily the divisions trademark labels to each respective buyer

As part of the sale transactions the Company agreed to provide to each respective buyer certain transitional services for fixed

fees and for limited period of time following closing Further in connection with the sale transactions the Company

entered into separation and release agreement with the president of the Companys now former womens division effective

May 2011 that entitled him to separation pay of $0.6 million

In addition each buyer assumed outstanding vendor and customer purchase orders and outstanding orders for shipments of

goods-in-transit and the Item-Eyes buyer assumed certain open letters of credit In each case the Company retained

ownership of its accounts receivable relating to the inventory sales made prior to the closing date and accounts payable

relating to the inventory sold The Company recognized pre-tax gain of $12.1 million on the sale of Hampshire Designers

and pre-tax loss of $0.3 million on the sale of Item-Eyes net of among other things severance and transaction related costs

The Company believes its net operating loss carryforwards will offset any tax liability resulting from the net gain The funds

from the sale of assets and the liquidation of the remaining assets were used to fund operations and other general corporate

purposes

The assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations are presented in the consolidated balance sheets under the captions

Assets of discontinued operations and Liabilities of discontinued operations The underlying assets and liabilities of the

discontinued operations for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 were as follows

Inthousand
2012 2011

orgeivaifl rr7rJtae ra
Other current assets

dthks$1IFa/c1reri7S St4$JW
AiaesMirer
Accrued

expenses
and other liabilities 220 833

.11r7t .rExtSlAP

At December 31 2012 and 2011 approximately $0 and $0.2 million respectively remains accrued in Accrued expenses
and

other liabilities in the table above relating to divisions disposed and discontinued prior to 2011

The operating results for the discontinued operations for the years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 were as follows

In thousands 2012 2011

income tax provision
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Note 18Loss Per Share

In thousands except per share data

tiiir iI II tt 1I
Basic loss from continuing operations 12522 7271 1.72iS Ii Ilk lkz/ ii lk II

Preferred stock rights

1I dEkrn 11 75
Stock optionscWnq 1i

2011

asiit1bcontW nsm ao30 Ii 11 4IS
Effect of dilutive securities

ii iii .iis

For the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 potentially dilutive shares of 688583 and 622500 respectively were

excluded from the calculation of dilutive shares because their effect would have been anti-dilutive These shares consist of

stock options and RSUs at December 31 2012 At December 31 2011 these shares consist of Performance Vested Shares

and RSUs See Note 14 Stock Plans Compensation Plans and Retirement Savings Plan

Note 19 Restructuring and Cost Savings Plan

During the current year the Company initiated cost savings plan primarily related to workforce reduction The Company
has incurred approximately $0.6 million in severance costs related to personnel reductions for the year ended December 31
2012 Severance costs are included in Restructuring costs in the consolidated statement of operations reconciliation of

the beginning and ending liability balances for severance costs under the current year restructuring plan included in Accrued

expenses and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet is shown below

In thousands

Costs chareed to exnense

Accrued

Severance

644

End of period

Note 20 Subsequent Events

243

On January 15 2013 Heath Golden resigned as chief executive officer of the Company In connection with the

resignation the Company entered into separation and release agreement with Mr Golden that entitled him to separation pay
of approximately $0.7 million to be paid in several installments through date no later than May 15 2013 At the time of the

resignation the Companys Board of Directors the Board appointed Paul Buxbaum to serve as the Companys new chief

executive officer

On January 28 2013 the Company entered into letter agreement the Agreement with Buxbaum Holdings Inc dlbla

Buxbaum Group Buxbaum Group Pursuant to the Agreement Buxbaum Group will provide certain restructuring and

advisory consulting services including providing the services of Paul Buxbaum to serve as the Companys Chief Executive

Officer in exchange for fee of $75000 per
month during the period commencing on January 16 2013 and ending unless

extended by mutual agreement on May 16 2013 the Term Mr Buxbaum will not be entitled to any direct compensation
from the Company in respect of his service as its Chief Executive Officer

Set forth in the table below is the reconciliation by year of the numerator loss from continuing operations and the

denominator shares for the computation of basic and diluted loss per share EPS
Numerator Denominator Per Share

Income Loss Shares Amount
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During the Term Buxbaum Group will be tasked with providing specific recommendations to the Board in order to

restructure the organization operations and expenses to better support the Companys business model and sales levels

Additionally Buxbaum Group will be responsible for the implementation
of such recommendations to the extent adopted by

the Board
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Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

The tables herein set forth the Companys unaudited condensed consolidated 2012 and 2011 quarterly statements of

operations

The following tables set forth the Company unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations for the 2012 quarters ended

March31 2012 June30 2012 September29 2012 December3l2012
In thousands except per share datasiS an aSCto /a

SWflW7 ra aSW I56/
Selling eneral and administrative expenses 9031 8168 8349 8417Red55e1a I9 ttsar
Loss from operations 5243 4006 1401 505
gfrom cans eiitiSIe5wnS aa iia3fl 5itma
Provision for income taxes 46 46 10 939

tflsfrh e4TjpS sin aia aa a2ou
Income loss from discontinued operations net of taxes 386 373 99 123

s1ttS aa saL4a
nincominpeSe na in aJ/

Loss from continuing operations 0.80 0.56 0.19 0.22

Net income loss 0.74 0.51 0.20 0.20at issr///4t
Diluted income loss per share

Lq Snajsiihsngjlfin aw So SI \tinF$i jtt 19jflfl
Income loss from discontinued operations net of

taxes 0.06 0.05 0.01 0.02

flNetaa tlosa a$w as
The following tables set forth the Companys unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations for the 2011 quarters ended

April 2011 July 2011 October 2011 December 31 2011
In thousands except per share data

oSPraMt/// at at inc at a/J
Selling general and administrative expenses 4277 5875 8667 9158
1fljsing at b4
Loss on lease obligation 6306

freS1jMIISos
Loss from operations 3546 7179 3087 7294
teas froiBsŁgâSW%minftas5 a6 S0l 541
Provision benefit for income taxes 69 27 1056 42

Ltflothco5g tiI3iiMSL .ifl OIW tW3 t71 1r1n1787 fl qifl II
Income loss from discontinued operations net of taxes 1302 10386 356 901naa a- flasv alan a///wm2L4/4Vas at2s4a

BcopŁ5 -e ato
Loss from continuing operations 0.67 1.30 0.36 1.08

Net income loss 0.90 0.55 0.30 0.94

amr aI2 -tin inc aa
Diluted income loss per share

as from 5u3 entsq$ inTi 41 ci naw gm
Income loss from discontinued operations net of

taxes 0.23 1.85 0.06 0.14

-4ç jjí o.a at 4g5$ OJII rp
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Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

On September 18 2012 we dismissed BDO USA LLP as our independent registered public accountants Concurrently and

upon the recommendation and approval of the Audit Committee we engaged Elliott Davis LLC as our independent

registered public accountants for the fiscal year ended December 31 2012 See Item 4.01 Changes in Registrants Certifying

Accountant in our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 21 2012

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Controls and Procedures

The Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the

Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Based upon that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of the end of the

period covered by this report the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective such that information relating

to the Company including its combined subsidiaries required to be disclosed in the Companys SEC reports
is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms and is accumulated and

communicated to the Companys management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as

appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f under the Exchange Act There are inherent limitations on

the effectiveness of any system of internal controls and procedures including the possibility of human error and the

circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures Accordingly even effective internal controls and procedures

provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives

In connection with filing this Annual Report management assessed the effectiveness of its internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2012

In making its assessments management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework Management has determined that no material

weaknesses in its internal control over financial reporting existed as of December 31 2012 and based on the criteria noted

above concluded that its internal control over fmancial reporting was effective as of December 31 2012

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Companys registered public accounting firm regarding

internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by the Companys registered

public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the SEC that permit the Company to provide only managements report in this

annual report

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended December

31 2012 that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial

reporting

Item 9B Other Information

Not applicable
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the

SEC within 120 days after the Companys fiscal year end of December 31 2012 pursuant to Regulation 4A of the Exchange

Act

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the

SEC within 120 days after the Companys fiscal year end of December 31 2012 pursuant to Regulation 4A of the Exchange

Act

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Except as provided herein the information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy
statement to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the Companys fiscal year end of December 31 2012 pursuant to

Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act

The following table provides information as of December 31 2012 with respect to shares of the Companys common stock

that may be issued under equity compensation plans

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Number of Weighted Number of Securities

Securities to be Average Exercise Remaining Available for

Issued Upon Price of Future Issuance Under

Exercise of Outstanding Equity

Outstanding Options Compensation Plans

Options Warrants Warrants and Excluding Securities

Plan Category and Rights Rights Reflected in Column

Iufty Comnsation Plans

Approved by Stockholders None N/A None

Equity Compensation Plans Not

Approved by Stockholders 688583 2.45 324.750

Total 688583 2.45 324750

See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Stock and

Compensation Plans and Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Note 15 Stock Plans Compensation Plans

and Retirement Savings Plan to the audited consolidated financial statements for additional discussion

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the

SEC within 120 days after the Companys fiscal year end of December 31 2012 pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange

Act

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the

SEC within 120 days after the Companys fiscal year end of December 31 2012 pursuant to Regulation 4A of the Exchange

Act
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this Report

Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of Hampshire Group Limited for each of the years
ended December

31 2012 and 2011 are submitted in Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this report

Consolidated Statements of Operations For each of the years
ended

r31

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows For each of the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011

Financial Statement Schedules

The following consolidated financial statement schedule of Hampshire Group Limited is included on page 63 of this

report

II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the SEC but which are excluded

from this report are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted

Exhibits

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hampshire Group Limited incorporated by reference to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004 File No 000-2020 on

March 15 2005

3.2 Certificate of Amendment and Restatement of the Certificate of Incorporation of Hampshire Group Limited

incorporated by reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2004 File No 000-2020 on March 15 2005

3.3 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Hampshire Group Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the

Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K on August 15 2008

3.4 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hampshire Group Limited incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report File No 000-2020 on Form 10-Q filed on

November 15 2011

3.4 Certificate of Designation of Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock incorporated by reference to Exhibit

3.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-2020 on Form 8-K filed on August 15 2008

4.1 Registration statement on Form S-8 filed by Hampshire Group Limited to register 880000 shares of the

Companys common stock par value $0.10 per share which may be issued under the Companys 2009 Stock

Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to the Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form S-8

on November 2009

4.2 Rights Agreement dated as of August 13 2008 between Hampshire Group Limited and Mellon Investor

Services LLC as Rights Agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report File

No 000-2020 on Form 8-K on August 15 2008

Descrintion

31
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4.3 First Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as of February 23 2009 by and between Hampshire Group
Limited and Mellon Investor Services LLC as Rights Agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K on February 24 2009

4.4 Second Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as of June 13 2011 by and between Hampshire Group
Limited and Mellon Investor Services LLC as Rights Agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 17 2011

10.1 Form of Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries 401k Retirement Savings Plan incorporated by
reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December 31 2004 File No 000-

2020 on March 15 2005

10.2 Form of Hampshire Group Limited Stock Option Plan Amended and Restated effective June 1995

incorporated by reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
2004 File No 000-2020 on March 15 2005

10.3 Form of Hampshire Group Limited and Affiliates Common Stock Purchase Plan for Directors and Executives

Amended June 1995 incorporated by reference to the Companys Aimual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2004 File No 000-20201 on March 15 2005

10.4 Form of Hampshire Group Limited Management Incentive Bonus Plan incorporated by reference to Appendix

to the Companys Proxy Statement filed October 21 2002

10.5 Employment Agreement dated April 2007 by and between Jonathan Norwood and Hampshire Group
Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-2020 on

Form 8-K filed on April 2007

10.6 Employment Agreement dated April 2007 by and between Heath Golden and Hampshire Group Limited

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K

filed on April 2007

Indemnification Agreement dated as of August 21 2006 by and between Jonathan Norwood and Hampshire

Group Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-

2020 on Form 8-K filed on August 24 2006

10.8 Letter Agreement dated August 21 2006 by and between Jonathan Norwood and Hampshire Group Limited

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-2020 on Form 8-K

filed on August 24 2006

Indemnification Agreement dated as of September 11 2006 by and between Heath Golden and Hampshire

Group Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-

2020 on Form 8-K filed on September 12 2006

10.10 Form of Hampshire Group Limited Stock Option Plan amended and restated effective February 2000

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Quarterly Report File No 000-2020 on Form

10-Q filed on August 2005

10.11 Lease Agreement between CHARNEY-FPG 114 41ST STREET LLC and Hampshire Group Limited dated

as of July 11 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-

2020 on Form 8-K filed on July 13 2007

10.12 Lease Agreement between CK Holdings LLC and Hampshire Designers Inc dated as of March 20 2006

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrants Annual Report File No 000-20201 on Form
10-K filed on March 13 2006

10.13 Indemnification Agreement dated as of January 2007 by and between Harvey Sperry and Hampshire

Group Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-

2020 on Form 8-K filed on January 2007
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10.14 lndemthfication Agreement dated as of January 2007 by and between Irwin Winter and Hampshire

Group Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-

2020 on Form 8-K filed on January 2007

10.15 Credit Agreement among HSBC Bank USA as agent the Banks named therein and Hampshire Group

Limited dated February 15 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Companys Current Report

File No 000-20201 on Form 10-K filed on March 21 2011

10.16 Hampshire Group Limited Long-Term Bonus Plan dated February 28 2008 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on March 2008

10.17 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Guaranty dated as of February 15 2008 among Hampshire

Group Limited Hampshire Designers Inc Item-Eyes Inc SB Corporation and Shane Hunter Inc HSBC

Bank USA National Association HSBC JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A Israel Discount Bank of New York

Wachovia Bank National Association Bank Leumi USA and Sovereign Bank as Banks and HSBC as Letter

of Credit Issuing Bank and as Agent for the Banks incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the

Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 10-K filed on March 21 2011

10.18 Amendment No dated as of April 15 2008 to that certain Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and

Guaranty dated as of February 15 2008 by and among Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire Designers Inc

Item-Eyes Inc SB Corporation and Shane Hunter Inc HSBC Bank USA National Association HSBC
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A Israel Discount Bank of New York Wachovia Bank National Association Bank

Leurni USA and Sovereign Bank as Banks and HSBC as Letter of Credit Issuing Bank and as Agent for the

Banks incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on

Form 8-K filed on April 22 2008

10.19 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Guaranty dated as of August 2008 by

and among Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire Designers Inc Item-Eyes Inc Shane Hunter Inc SB

Corporation the Banks party thereto and HSBC Bank USA National Association as Agent for the Banks

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K

filed on August 2008

10.20 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Guaranty dated as of August 2009 by and among

Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire Designers Inc and Item-Eyes Inc HSBC Bank USA National

Association HSBC JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A Wachovia Bank National Association Bank Leumi USA

and Sovereign Bank as Banks and HSBC as Letter of Credit Issuing Bank and as Agent for the Banks

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form

10-K filed on March 21 2011

10.21 Amendment No dated as of May 2010 to that certain Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

and Guaranty dated as of August 2009 by and among Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire Designers

Inc and Item-Eyes Inc HSBC Bank USA National Association HSBC JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A
Wachovia Bank National Association Bank Leumi USA and Sovereign Bank as Banks and HSBC as Letter

of Credit issuing Bank and as Agent for the Banks incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the

Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 10-K filed on March 21 2011

10.22 Credit Agreement dated as of October 28 2010 by and among Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire

Designers Inc Item-Eyes inc and Scott James LLC and Wells Fargo Capital Finance LLC as agent and

lender incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Quarterly Report File No 000-20201 on

Form lO-Q filed on November 15 2011

10.23 Indemnification Agreement dated as of April 29 2008 by and between Richard Mandell and Hampshire

Group Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-

20201 on Form 8-K filed on May 2008

10.24 Indemnification Agreement dated as of April 29 2008 by and between Herbert Elish and Hampshire Group

Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on

Form 8-K filed on May 2008
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10.25 Letter Agreement with Richard Mandell dated as of April 15 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

99.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on April 21 2009

10.26 Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire Group Limited 2009 Stock Incentive Plan dated October 21 2009

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K

filed on October 27 2009

0.27 Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire Group Limited 2010 Cash Incentive Bonus Plan dated October 21
2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on

Form 10-K/A filed on October 26 2011

10.28 Letter Agreement dated December 2009 among Hampshire Group Limited Peter Woodward and MHW
Capital Management incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No
000-2020 on Form 8-K filed on December 2009

10.29 Indemnification Agreement dated December 2009 between Hampshire Group Limited and Peter

Woodward incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201

on Form 8-K filed on December 2009

10.30 Indemnification Agreement dated March 16 2011 between Hampshire Group Limited and Janice Page

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-2020 on Form

10-KIA filed on April 14 2011

10.31 Indemnification Agreement dated March 16 2011 between Hampshire Group Limited and Robert Siegel

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form

10-K/A filed on April14 2011

10.32 Indemnification Agreement dated April 13 2011 between Hampshire Group Limited and Timothy Walsh

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form

10-K/A filed on April 14 2011

10.33 Employment Agreement dated as of October 12 2010 by and between Hampshire Group Limited and Eric

Prengel incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.54 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on

Form 10-K/A filed on April 14 2011

10.34 Letter Agreement dated July 16 2009 by and between Howard Zwilling and Hampshire Group Limited

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form
10-K/A filed on April 14 2011

10.35 Asset Purchase Agreement dated May 2011 by and between Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire

Designers Inc and LF USA Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report

File No 000-2020 on Form 8-K filed on May 2011

10.36 Asset Purchase Agreement dated May 2011 by and between Hampshire Group Limited Item-Eyes Inc and

KBL International Group Ltd incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report

File No 000-2020 on Form 8-K filed on May 2011

10.37 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Heath Golden dated May 2011 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-2020 on Form 8-K filed on May

2011

10.38 Equity Award Agreement with Heath Golden dated May 2011 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4

to the Companys Current Report File No 000-2020 on Form 8-K filed on May 2011

10.39 Separation and Release Agreement dated as of May 11 2011 by and between Hampshire Group Limited and

Howard Zwilling incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report File No
000-20201 on Form l0-Q filed on May 12 2011
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10.40 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 13 2011 by and among Hampshire Group Limited RG Merger

Sub S.A Rio Garment de R.L the Equityholders of Rio and BGY II LLC incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on June 17 2011

10.41 Form of Voting Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report File

No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on June 17 2011

10.42 Form of Stockholder Rights Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Current

Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on June 17 2011

10.43 Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 15 2011 between Hampshire Group

Limited RG Merger Sub S.A Rio Garment de R.L and BGY Ii LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on August 17 2011

10.44 Employment Agreement dated July 17 2011 by and between Hampshire Group Limited and Maura

Langley incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on

Form 8-K filed on August 17 2011

10.45 Amendment No to Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Hampshire Group Limited RG Merger

Sub S.A Rio Garment de R.L and BGY 11 LLC dated as of August 25 2011 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on August 30 2011

10.46 Equity Award Agreement with Heath Golden dated August 25 2011 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.2 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on August 30 2011

10.47 First Amendment to Credit Agreement and Consent by and among Hampshire Group Limited Hampshire

Brands Inc formerly known as Hampshire Designers Inc Hampshire Sub II Inc formerly known as Item-

Eyes inc Scott James LLC Hampshire International LLC and Wells Fargo Capital Finance LLC as agent

and lender and the other financial institutions named therein as lenders incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.2 to the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 10-Q filed on November 15 2011

10.48 Indenmification Agreement dated March 2012 between Hampshire Group Limited and Maura Langley

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to the Companys Annual Report File No 000-20201 on Form

10-K filed on March 19 2012

10.49 Indemnification Agreement dated March 15 2012 between Hampshire Group Limited and Benjamin

Yogel incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to the Companys Annual Report File No 000-20201 on

Form 10-K filed on March 19 2012

10.50 Indemnification Agreement dated March 13 2012 between Hampshire Group Limited and Paul Buxbaum

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the Companys Annual Report File No 000-20201 on Form

10-K filed on March 19 2012

10.51 Form of Option Grant Notice and Agreement pursuant to the 2009 Stock Incentive Plan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.51 to the Companys Annual Report File No 000-20201 on Form 10-K filed on

March 19 2012

10.52 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement and Amendment to Other Loan Documents by and among Hampshire

Group Limited Hampshire Brands Inc formerly known as Hampshire Designers Inc Hampshire Sub II

Inc Scott James LLC Hampshire International LLC and Wells Fargo Capital Finance LLC as agent and

lender and the other financial institutions named therein as lenders incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 lto

the Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on May 2012

10.53 Separation Consulting and Release Agreement dated as of January 18 2013 by and between Hampshire

Group Limited and Heath Golden incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current

Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on January 22 2013
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10.54 Proposal and engagement agreement for advisory services by and among Hampshire Group Limited and

Buxbaum Holdings Inc also known as Buxbaum Group incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Current Report File No 000-20201 on Form 8-K filed on February 2013

11.0 Hampshire Group Limited Consolidated Earnings Per Share Computations incorporated by reference to Note

18 to the consolidated financial statements included in Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data of this report

14.1 Code of Ethics and Business Conduct incorporated by reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31 2004 File No 000-2020 on March 15 2005

14.2 Complaint Procedures for Accounting and Audit Matters incorporated by reference to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004 File No 000-20201 on March 15 2005

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of Elliott Davis LLC

23.2 Consent of BDO USA LLP

31.1 Certification of ChiefExecutive Officer pursuant to Item 601b 31 of Regulations S-K as adopted pursuant

to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Item 601b 31 of Regulations S-K as adopted pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101 The following materials from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012
formatted in XBRL eXtensible Business Reporting Language the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 ii the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 iii the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for the

year ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 iv the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for

the year ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements that have been detail tagged

101.INS XBRL Instance

101 .SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation

101 .DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition

101 .LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation

XBRL information hereto are deemed furnished and not filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for

purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended are deemed not filed for
purposes of

Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and otherwise is not subject to liability under

these sections

Company compensatory plan or management contract
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Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of this Exhibit which portions have been

omitted and filed separately with the Commission as part of an application for confidential treatment
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Schedule II

Hampshire Group Limited

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Allowance for Returns Discounts and Adjustments Allowance for Inventory

Reserves and Deferred Tax Valuation Allowances

In thousands

Year ended December 31 12

Balance at Charged to Charged to

Beginning of Costs and Other Accounts

Year Expenses Acquisitions Deductions

Balance at

End of

Year

Year ended December 31 2012

Deferred tax valuation allowances

None

1140 2116 2306 950

10 23 10 23

Year ended December 31 2012 6094 7568 8915 4747

Inventory reserves

Year ended December 31 25827 3366 29193
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused

this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Hampshire Group Limited

Date March 18 2013 By /5/ Paul Buxbaum

Paul Buxbaum

President and ChiefExecutive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed below by the following

persons in the capacities indicated on March 18 2013

Signature Title

Is Peter Woodward Chairman of the Board

Peter Woodward

Is Paul Buxbaum President and Chief Executive Officer

Paul Buxbaum principal executive officer

Is Maura Langley Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Maura Langley
principal financial officer and principal accounting

officer

Is Robert Siegel
Director

Robert Siegel

Is Richard Mandell Director

Richard Mandell

Is Benjamin Yogel Director

Benjamin Yogel
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EXHIBIT INDEX

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1 Consent of Elliott Davis LLC

23.2 Consent of BDO USA LLP

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Item 601b 31 of Regulations S-K as adopted pursuant

to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Item 601b 31 of Regulations S-K as adopted pursuant

to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101 The following materials from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31 2012

formatted in XBRL eXtensible Business Reporting Language the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 ii the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 iii the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for the

year
ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 iv the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for

the year ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements that have been detail tagged

101.INS XBRL Instance

101 .SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation

101 .DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition

101 .LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation

XBRL information hereto are deemed furnished and not filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for

purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended are deemed not filed for
purposes of

Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and otherwise is not subject to liability under

these sections



EXHIBIT 21.1

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES AND THEIR COUNTRY OR STATE OF INCORPORATION/ORGANIZATION

State/Country of Percentage of Voting

Incorporation or Securities Owned by

Name of Subsidiary Or2anization Immediate Parent

ea eairiprrastar4CStthe2ratStirr$
Keynote Services Limited Hong Kong 100%

// //rtspp4jgt mm /55 fqg am
Hampshire Sub II Inc formerly Item-Eyes Inc Delaware 100%aeatssitesssssastaitsacse
Hampshire Sub Inc formerly Shane Hunter Inc Delaware 100%

Wthg5aqr5 SitSits as1a
Marisa Christina Apparel Inc Delaware 100%

SiStaSSAVLSStsP SA$Ea1LW
Hampshire intemational LLC Delaware 100%iSISm45 S///sr/tW/ ii

The remaining 50% of the voting securities of Rio Garment S.A are owned directly by Hampshire Group Limited



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Hampshire Group Limited

New York New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 No 33-86312 and Form

S-8 No 333-53750 and No 333-162875 of Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries of our report dated March 18

2013 relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule which appears in this Form 10-K

/s/ Elliott Davis LLC

Elliott Davis LLC

Greenville South Carolina

March 18 2013



EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Hampshire Group Limited

New York New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 No 33-86312 and Form

S-8 No 333-53750 and No 333-162875 of Hampshire Group Limited and Subsidiaries of our report dated March 19

2012 except as to the effect of reclassification adjustments discussed in Notes and to the consolidated financial

statements as to which the date is March 18 2013 relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statenient

schedule which appears in this Form 10-K

Is BDO USA LLP

BDO USA LLP

Charlotte North Carolina

March 19 2012 except as to Notes and to the consolidated financial statements as to

which the date is March 18 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Item 60 1b 31 of Regulations S-K as adopted pursuant

to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Paul Buxbaum certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hampshire Group Limited

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the fmancial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of
and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including

its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case

of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 18 2013

Is Paul Buxbaum

Paul Buxbaum

President and Chief Executive Officer

Hampshire Group Limited



EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Item 60 1b 31 of Regulations S-K as adopted pursuant

to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Maura Langley certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hampshire Group Limited

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13 a-i 51 and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including

its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such intemal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case

of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 18 2013

Is Maura Langley

Maura Langley

Vice President ChiefFinancial Officer and Treasurer

Hampshire Group Limited



EXHIBIT 32.1

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
OF HAMPSHIRE GROUP LIMITED

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hampshire Group Limited the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended

December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report the

undersigned Paul Buxbaum ChiefExecutive Officer of the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted

pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to his knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company

Is Paul Buxbaum

Paul Buxbaum

President and Chief Executive Officer

Hampshire Group Limited

March 18 2013



EXHIBIT 32.2

STATEMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFiCER

OF HAMPSHIRE GROUP LIMITED

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hampshire Group Limited the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended

December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report the undersigned

Maura Langley Chief Financial Officer of the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to his knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects
the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company

Is Maura Langley

Maura Langley

Vice President ChiefFinancial Officer and Treasurer

Hampshire Group Limited

March 18 2013
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